# **Broadband Technology Opportunities Program**



Waiver Request							
EGID: 7835			Project Category: Comprehensive Community Infrastructure Grant Application – Public Safety				
Applicant Name: LA-RICS				Date: 6/30/2010			
Project Title: The Los Angeles Public Safety	Broadba	nd N	etwork: LA-SafetyN	et			
Contact Name: Scott Poster							
Email Address: scott.poster@la-rics.org			Phone No.: 323-88	31-2461			
<b>Type of Waiver Requested</b> (check one):		Mato	hing (pursuant to N	IOFA Section V.C.2.)			
	X_	Las	t Mile Coverage (pu	rsuant to NOFA Section V.C.3.c.ii.)			
		Sale	or Lease of Assets	(pursuant to NOFA Section IX.C.2.b)			
		Buy	American (pursuant	to NOFA Section X.Q)			
		Gene	eral Provision (pursu	uant to NOFA Section X.N)			

#### **Summary of Waiver Request**

(In the space below please provide a detailed explanation of the waiver request, including all information requested in the corresponding NOFA Section and Grant Guidance.)

The Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority (LA-RICS) is requesting a waiver of the NOFA Section V.D.3.c.ii *Last Mile Coverage Obligations* to provide last mile wireless broadband coverage into all geographic areas within the County of Los Angeles Service Area. Due to the "extreme burden" of providing Last Mile wireless coverage in remote mountainous and desert areas and within a few regions that are guarded by deep ravines impacting radio propagation, we believe this waiver is justified.

The proposed LA-SafetyNet broadband wireless network will provide service to over 99% of all populations within the County and cover 89.3% of the 4,060 square miles of diverse terrain and geography of Los Angeles County. Our public safety personnel will be provided a minimum of 768 kbps of downlink and 200 kbps of service throughout the most mission critical areas of the County, including all Community Anchor Institutions and critical infrastructure locations. Last Mile service will also be delivered to all fire department staging areas within the County mountains and ravines where required to provide broadband communication capabilities to best facilitate interoperability to support large scale forest fires that plague our County during the dry season. We will also deploy portable "cell-on-wheels" solutions when possible to extend coverage into remote areas and employ aircraft equipped with long-range capabilities where possible to further extend the network's reliable coverage during short durations.

There are both technical and financial issues affecting the ability of LA-RICS to extend wireless coverage into these areas. Radio propagation is severely impeded within mountainous and deep ravine geography and it would require an excessive investment of capital to expand wireless coverage into these areas. The cost to acquire property, build access roads, level the land, lay a cement pad and construct radio towers and equipment buildings in hundreds of unpopulated square miles of mountainous areas is financially unfeasible. The cost of this type of construction is many times more expensive in this terrain and such tower Buildout would exceed \$1,000,000 for each site and it could take hundreds of additional wireless facilities to cover the few hundred of square miles that are currently uncovered. While the interest to provide reliable coverage within the remote areas is warranted, the financial investment cannot be economically justified.

The technical challenge of overcoming the laws of physics impacting radio propagation within these difficult geographic areas would require excessive financial investment. No other commercial wireless broadband carriers currently provide service within the regions not covered by the LA-SafetyNet areas but in the future if opportunities were presented to partner with the commercial industry to extend broadband wireless service into these areas, LA-RICS will fully evaluate the opportunity.

#### **Attached Documents**

(If applicable, indicate all attached supporting documentation)

#### **BTOP Comprehensive Community Infrastructure** Service Offerings and Competitor Data Template

Please complete the complete the following worksheets--either of the Last Mile or Middle Mile Service Offerings worksheets may be omitted if the applicant is not proposing to provide services of that type.

For both the Last Mile and Middle Mile Service Offerings worksheets, the service offerings should include all relevant tiers and markets (*e.g.* residential, business, wholesale). Applicants should be sure to include details on any services that would be offered at discounted rates to particular classes of customers (*e.g.* community anchor institutions or third party service providers).

In the Last Mile Service Offerings worksheet, applicants are required to provide estimated average end user speeds. Average speeds should be the average sustained actual, non-burst speeds that an end user would receive during a peak hour. For purposes of calculating these speeds, applicants should utilize their subscriber projections for year eight of the project, and develop subscriber utilization projections that are consistent with any additional services the applicant plans to offer. For wireless broadband services, this speed should be an average of the speeds available across an entire cell. Beyond these general guidelines, due to the multiplicity of technical solutions that may be proposed, the applicants may use discretion to determine the most reasonable manner in which to estimate actual speeds on their network. Applicants should explain the underlying assumptions used to calculate the average speeds in the space provided.

In the Competitor Data worksheet, applicants are required to provide data on both last mile and middle mile service providers, regardless of whether the applicant proposes to offer both last mile and middle mile services. In the column titled Service Areas Where Service Offered, applicants should list all of the Last Mile and Middle Mile Service Areas within their Proposed Funded Service area in which the listed services area available. Please ensure that the Service Area names are consistent with those provided within the application and the Service Areas attachment. If the actual availability of the listed services is limited (*e.g.* the service is only available within part of the Last Mile or Middle Mile Service Area), note this in the Other Comments column.

In contrast to several other attachment templates in this application, the data provided via this template will NOT be subject to automated processing. These templates worksheets are provided to demonstrate the level of data required and to provide a suggested format. Applicants are free to modify the template layouts in order to provide the most effective presentation of the data for their specific project. Applicants should, however, ensure that they provide at least as much detail as these templates require. To the extent that you modify these templates please ensure that the print layouts are adjusted so that rows do not break across pages in a manner that will be difficult to understand. It is recommended that you provide these documents in PDF format when submitting a copy of your application on an appropriate electronic medium, such as a DVD, CD-ROM, or flash drive.

# LA-RICS Proposed Last Mile Service Offerings

Easygrant ID: 7835

	Advertised	l Speeds	Estimated Ave	erage Speeds	Average Latency	• Pricing Plan (\$ per	Other Comments/Description/Features
Name of Service Tier	Downstream Mbps	Upstream Mbps	Downstream Mbps	Upstream Mbps	@ End User CPE miliseconds	month)	or Limitations
LA-SafetyNet LTE Last Mile Wireless	1 Mbps	500 kbps	768 kbps	200 kbps	10 ms	Annual cost of LA- SafetyNet operations to be spread across all users at cost plus overhead	
	i  ] /	i 				i 	

Explanation of Average Speed Calculations:

The average speed is based on the delivery of the minimum throughput service at the cell edge. Within the individual cell, average throughput will exceed the estimated average speeds based on the number of users and types of applications utilized.

# LA-RICS Proposed Middle Mile Service Offerings

Easygrant ID: 7835

Name of Service Offering	Distance Band or Point to Point	Minimum Peak Load Network Bandwidth Capacity (Mbps)	Monthly/Yearly Pricing (\$)	Other Comments/Description/Features or Limitations
LA-SafetyNet Middle Mile	Both services offered		Cost to end users will be based on the spread of operational cost across all user agencies	LA-SafetyNet will primarily be delivered to fire stations and other public safety CAI facilities that do not currently have broadband access.
i I	i 		 	
     	+			
l	i • •		; ; ,	

## **LA-RICS** Competitor Data

Easygrant ID: 7835

#### Competitor Data - Last Mile Service Providers

Service Provider	Service Areas Where Service Available	Technology Platform	Service Tiers	Downstream Speed	Monthly Pricing	Other Comments/Description/Features or Limitations
Verizon Wireless	Populated basin, very limited coverage in rugged mountains or unpopulated desert	3G	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Cannot support public safety grade network reliability requirements and has throughput limitations.
AT&T	Populated basin, very limited coverage in rugged mountains or unpopulated desert	3G	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Cannot support public safety grade network reliability requirements and has throughput limitations.
Sprint	Populated basin, very limited coverage in rugged mountains or unpopulated desert	3G	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Cannot support public safety grade network reliability requirements and has throughput limitations.
T-Mobile	Populated basin, very limited coverage in rugged mountains or unpopulated desert	2G	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Cannot support public safety grade network reliability requirements and has throughput limitations.

#### Competitor Data - Middle Mile Service Providers

Service Provider	Service Areas Where Service Available	Technology Platform	Service Tiers	Distance Band or Point-to- Point	Minimum Peak Load Network Bandwidth Capacity	Pricing	Other Comments/ Description/ Features or Limitations
Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply	Does Not Apply

# Comprehensive Community Infrastructure Key Metrics Dashboard

Applicant Profile	
Applicant Name	Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System Authority
Title	The Los Angeles Public Safety Broadband Network: LA-SafetyNet
Easygrants ID	7835
Headquarters	Monterey Park, CA
Size (2009 Data) of Applicant	17 board members
Entity	• \$18.8 billion for Los Angeles County, LA-RICS member.
Technology Type	Wireless – Terrestrial Mobile
	Los Angeles County, Los Angeles City, City of Long Beach, Los Angeles
Key Partners	Unified School District, Los Angeles County Department of Health
Key Faithers	Services, Los Angeles County Police Chief's Association, Los Angeles Area
	Fire Chiefs Association, Contract Cities Association.

Project Economics			
Budget Information		Project Financials	
Project Budget	\$245,107,000	Project Revenues (Yr 8)	\$19,113,000
Federal Contribution (%)	70%	Net Income and Margin (Yr 8)	0
Cash Match Amount (%)	12.23%	EBITDA and Margin (Yr 8)	0
In Kind Match Amount (%)	17.77%	Rate of Return (w/o BTOP Funds)	N/A
Middle Mile/Last Mile Budge	t Allocation	Rate of Return (w/ BTOP Funds)	N/A
Middle Mile Percentage (%) 13.59%		Cost Efficiency	
Last Mile Percentage (%)	86.40%	Cost per Mile (MM)	\$13,138
Rural Last Mile Percentage	0%	Cost per Household (LM)	\$56.90

Market Territory				
Geographic Area(s)	All populated areas, critical infrastructure, CAIs, major roads, and wildfire staging areas throughout 4,060 square miles of Los Angeles County.			
Middle Mile Network Composi	tion			
Total Proposed Network Miles (MM only)	<ul> <li>Total Miles: 2427</li> <li>Backbone Miles: 2133</li> <li>Lateral Miles: 294</li> </ul>			
New Construction Network Miles (MM only)	<ul> <li>Total Miles: 1769</li> <li>Backbone Miles: 1619</li> <li>Lateral Miles: 150</li> </ul>			
Existing Applicant Network Miles Utilized (MM only)	<ul> <li>Total Miles: 543</li> <li>Backbone Miles: 399</li> <li>Lateral Miles: 144</li> </ul>			
Leased Network Miles Utilized (MM only)	<ul> <li>Total Miles: 115</li> <li>Backbone Miles: 115</li> <li>Lateral Miles: 0</li> </ul>			
Underserved/Unserved	<ul> <li>Percentage of Backbone Miles in Underserved/Unserved Areas: N/A</li> <li>Percentage of Lateral Miles in Underserved/Unserved Areas: N/A</li> </ul>			

# Comprehensive Community Infrastructure Key Metrics Dashboard

Existing Customer Base	
Existing Residential/Individual	None. There is currently no broadband network dedicated to public safety
Customers within PFSA	personnel and second responders throughout Los Angeles County.
Existing Business Customers	Not Applicable. LA-SafetyNet will be dedicated to public safety personnel
within PFSA	and second responders throughout Los Angeles.
Existing Community Anchor	Total CAI's: None
Institution Customers within	Community Colleges: None
PFSA	Public Safety Entities: None
Existing Third Party Service	Not Applicable. LA-SafetyNet will be dedicated to public safety users and
Provider Customers within	other municipal services.
PFSA	
Potential Customer Base	
Market Potential Households	<ul> <li>Total HH's: Not applicable</li> </ul>
(within PFSA)	<ul> <li>Located in Underserved/Unserved Areas: Not applicable</li> </ul>
Market Potential Businesses	Total Businesses: Not applicable
(within PFSA)	<ul> <li>Located in Underserved/Unserved Areas: Not applicable</li> </ul>
Market Potential Community	Total CAI's: 1483
Anchor Institutions (within	<ul> <li>Located in Underserved/Unserved Areas: Not applicable</li> </ul>
PFSA)	Community Colleges: 9
	Public Safety Entities: 422
Market Potential Third Party	<ul> <li>Total Third Party Service Providers in PFSA: Not applicable</li> </ul>
Service Providers (within	<ul> <li>Expressing Commitment or Letter of Interest: Not applicable</li> </ul>
PFSA)	
Funded Network Coverage	
Households Connected to	Total Households Connected: Not applicable
Network (via BTOP Funds by end of Year 3)	<ul> <li>Located in Underserved/Unserved Areas: Not applicable</li> </ul>
Businesses Connected to	Total Businesses Connected: Not applicable
Network (via BTOP Funds by	Located in Underserved/Unserved Areas: Not applicable
end of Year 3)	Located in onderserved/onserved Areas. Not applicable
Community Anchor	Total Directly Connected CAI's: 204
Institutions Directly	<ul> <li>Located in Underserved/Unserved Areas: Not applicable</li> </ul>
Connected (via BTOP Funds	Community Colleges: 0
by end of Year 3)	Public Safety Entities: 204
	Directly Served by Applicant
	<ul> <li>Community Anchor Institutions: 51,000 first and second responders</li> </ul>
	Households: Not applicable
	Businesses: Not applicable
Projected Subscribers by Year	Third Party Service Providers: Not applicable
Five	
	Served by Proposed Network Via Third Party Service Provider
	Community Anchor Institutions: Not applicable
	Households: Not applicable
	Businesses: Not applicable

# Comprehensive Community Infrastructure Key Metrics Dashboard

Other				
Proposed MM Network	Backbone: Up to 2.5GBps			
Capacity	Laterals: 15 Mbps			
Proposed LM Network Speed	Highest offered speed tier: 768 kbps			
Proposed Livi Network Speed	<ul> <li>Estimated Average speed for highest speed tier: 768kbps</li> </ul>			
Total Points of	Total Pol's: 587			
Interconnection	<ul> <li>Pol's in Underserved/Unserved Areas: Not applicable</li> </ul>			
Interconnection	<ul> <li>Environmentally-controlled, non-passive Pols: Not applicable</li> </ul>			
	Direct Job-years: 292			
Jobs Created	• Indirect Job-years: 1,110			
	Induced Job-years: 789			
<b>Required Time for Project</b>				
Completion (Number of				
Required Quarters to Fully	12 quarters			
Build-out and Test Network	12 quarters			
and Make Ready for				
Commercial Service)				

BUDGET INFORMATION - Construction Programs       OMB Approval No. 4040-0008         Expiration Date 07/30/2010						
NOTE: Certain Federal assistance programs require additional computations to arrive at the Federal share of project costs eligible for participation. If such is the case, you will be notified.         COST CLASSIFICATION       a. Total Cost       b. Costs Not Allowable for Participation       c. Total Allowable Costs (Columns a-b)						
1. Administrative and legal expenses	\$ 13,297,098.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 13,297,098.00			
2. Land, structures, rights-of-way, appraisals, etc.	\$ 78,360,766.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 78,360,766.00			
3. Relocation expenses and payments	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00			
4. Architectural and engineering fees	\$ 16,360,786.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 16,360,786.00			
5. Other architectural and engineering fees	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00			
6. Project inspection fees	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00			
7. Site work	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00			
8. Demolition and removal	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00			
9. Construction	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00			
10. Equipment	\$ 135,818,368.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 135,818,368.00			
11. Miscellaneous	\$ 1,270,000.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 1,270,000.00			
12. SUBTOTAL (sum of lines 1- 11)	\$ 245,107,018.00	\$0.00	\$ 245,107,018.00			
13. Contingencies	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00			
14. SUBTOTAL	\$ 245,107,018.00	\$0.00	\$ 245,107,018.00			
15. Project (program) income	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00	\$0.00			
16. TOTAL PROJECT COSTS (subtract #15 from #14)	\$ 245,107,018.00	\$0.00	\$ 245,107,018.00			
	FEDERAL FUNDI	NG				
17. Federal assistance requested, calculate as follows: (Consult Federal agency for Federal percentage share.) Enter the resulting Federal share.       Enter eligible costs from line 16c Multiply X       70       %       171,574,912.00						

Previous Edition Usable

Authorized for Local Reproduction

Standard Form 424C (Rev. 7-97) Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 180 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0041), Washington, DC 20503.

## PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

This sheet is to be used for the following types of applications: (1) "New" (means a new [previously unfunded] assistance award); (2) "Continuation" (means funding in a succeeding budget period which stemmed from a prior agreement to fund); and (3) "Revised" (means any changes in the Federal Government's financial obligations or contingent liability from an existing obligation). If there is no change in the award amount, there is no need to complete this form. Certain Federal agencies may require only an explanatory letter to effect minor (no cost) changes. If you have questions, please contact the Federal agency.

*Column* a. - If this is an application for a "New" project, enter the total estimated cost of each of the items listed on lines 1 through 16 (as applicable) under "COST CLASSIFICATION."

If this application entails a change to an existing award, enter the eligible amounts *approved under the previous award* for the items under "COST CLASSIFICATION."

*Column* b. - If this is an application for a "New" project, enter that portion of the cost of each item in Column a. which is *not* allowable for Federal assistance. Contact the Federal agency for assistance in determining the allowability of specific costs.

If this application entails a change to an existing award, enter the adjustment [+ or (-)] to the previously approved costs (from column a.) reflected in this application.

Column. - This is the net of lines 1 through 16 in columns "a." and "b."

Line 1 - Enter estimated amounts needed to cover administrative expenses. Do not include costs which are related to the normal functions of government. Allowable legal costs are generally only those associated with the purchases of land which is allowable for Federal participation and certain services in support of construction of the project.

Line 2 - Enter estimated site and right(s)-of-way acquisition costs (this includes purchase, lease, and/or easements).

Line 3 - Enter estimated costs related to relocation advisory assistance, replacement housing, relocation payments to displaced persons and businesses, etc.

Line 4 - Enter estimated basic engineering fees related to construction (this includes start-up services and preparation of project performance work plan).

Line 5 - Enter estimated engineering costs, such as surveys, tests, soil borings, etc.

Line 6 - Enter estimated engineering inspection costs.

Line 7 - Enter estimated costs of site preparation and restoration which are not included in the basic construction contract.

Line 9 - Enter estimated cost of the construction contract.

Line 10 - Enter estimated cost of office, shop, laboratory, safety equipment, etc. to be used at the facility, if such costs are not included in the construction contract.

Line 11 - Enter estimated miscellaneous costs.

Line 12 - Total of items 1 through 11.

Line 13 - Enter estimated contingency costs. (Consult the Federal agency for the percentage of the estimated construction cost to use.)

Line 14 - Enter the total of lines 12 and 13.

Line 15 - Enter estimated program income to be earned during the grant period, e.g., salvaged materials, etc.

Line 16 - Subtract line 15 from line 14.

Line 17 - This block is for the computation of the Federal share. Multiply the total allowable project costs from line 16, column "c." by the Federal percentage share (this may be up to 100 percent; consult Federal agency for Federal percentage share) and enter the product on line 17. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503.

# PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

**NOTE**: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the Awarding Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant:

- 1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project costs) to ensure proper planning, management and completion of the project described in this application.
- 2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the assistance; and will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards or agency directives.
- 3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title, or other interest in the site and facilities without permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record the Federal awarding agency directives and will include a covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole or in part with Federal assistance funds to assure non-discrimination during the useful life of the project.
- 4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review and approval of construction plans and specifications.
- 5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision at the construction site to ensure that the complete work conforms with the approved plans and specifications and will furnish progress reports and such other information as may be required by the assistance awarding agency or State.
- 6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.
- 7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

- Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards for merit systems for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).
- 9. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.
- 10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681 1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee 3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) underwhich application for Federal assistance is being made; and, (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the application.

- 11. Will comply, or has already complied, with the requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal and federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.
- Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.
- Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction subagreements.
- Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is \$10,000 or more.
- 15. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures under the

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).

- Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.
- Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq).
- Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-1 33, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."
- Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this program.

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL	INTRIM DIRECTOR
*APPLICANT ORGANIZATION	*DATE SUBMITTED
LA-RICS	6/30/10 0.00

SF-424D (Rev. 7-97) Back

#### Before the Federal Communications Commission Washington, D.C. 20554

In the Matter of	)	
	)	
Requests for Waiver of Various	)	PS Docket No. 06-229
Petitioners to Allow the Establishment	)	
of 700 MHz Interoperable Public Safety	)	
Wireless Broadband Networks	)	

#### ORDER

#### Adopted: May 11, 2010

## Released: May 12, 2010

Paragraph #

By the Commission:

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### Heading

I. INTRODUCTION	
II. BACKGROUND	
III. DISCUSSION	9
A. Timing	9
B. Waiver Standard	
C. Conditions	
1. Spectrum Leasing	
2. Evidence of Funding	
3. Technical Conditions	
4. Network Integration	
5. Milestones and Reporting	
6. Permitted Spectrum Bands	
D. Other Issues	
E. Narrowband Relocation	72
F. Flow Mobile	74
IV. PROCEDURAL MATTERS	
V. ORDERING CLAUSES	
APPENDIX A: Waivers Conditionally Granted	
APPENDIX B: Standard Lease	

#### I. INTRODUCTION

1. By this order we grant, with conditions, those waiver Petitions listed in Appendix A, filed by public safety entities ("Petitioners") seeking early deployment of statewide or local public safety broadband networks in the 700 MHz public safety broadband spectrum (763-768 MHz and 793-798

MHz).<sup>1</sup> We find that these entities have generally met the standard for waiver of the Commission's rules, and that so long as the conditions imposed herein are met we may proceed with the Order in advance of resolution of the broader issues pending in this docket. By enabling early deployment in this band, we take a major step towards development of a nationwide interoperable public safety broadband wireless network.

2. We also deny the petition of New EA d/b/a Flow Mobile, finding that Flow Mobile fails to meet the eligibility criteria of Section 337 of the Communications  $Act.^2$ 

#### II. BACKGROUND

3. The 700 MHz Band (698-806 MHz) was made available for wireless services as part of the digital television transition.<sup>3</sup> Pursuant to Congress's direction in the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, codified at section 337(a) of the Act, the Commission allocated, in the Upper 700 MHz Band (746-806 MHz), 24 megahertz of spectrum for public safety services and 36 megahertz for commercial services.<sup>4</sup>

4. In the *Second Report and Order* in this docket, the Commission designated the 763-768 MHz and 793-798 MHz bands for public safety broadband communications, and consolidated existing narrowband allocations to the 769-775 MHz and 799-805 MHz bands.<sup>5</sup> The Commission also created a single nationwide license, the Public Safety Broadband License, for the public safety broadband spectrum and specified the criteria, selection process, and responsibilities of the licensee assigned this spectrum.<sup>6</sup> The Public Safety Spectrum Trust ("PSST") was later designated as the nationwide Public Safety Broadband Licensee ("PSBL").<sup>7</sup>

5. The Commission also created a nationwide license for the commercial D Block, located adjacent to the public safety broadband spectrum at 758-763 MHz and 788-793 MHz.<sup>8</sup> The Commission required the D Block licensee to enter into a public/private partnership with the PSBL, and, using the spectrum associated with both licenses, construct and operate a nationwide network that would be shared by commercial and public safety users.<sup>9</sup>

6. The auction of the D Block and other 700 MHz Band licenses, designated Auction 73, began on January 24, 2008, and closed on March 18, 2008.<sup>10</sup> While the other 700 MHz Band commercial

<sup>5</sup> See Service Rules for the 698-746, 747-762 and 777-792 Bands; Implementing a Nationwide, Broadband, Interoperable Public Safety Network in the 700 MHz Band, WT Docket No. 06-150, PS Docket No. 06-229, Second Report and Order, 22 FCC Rcd 15289, 15406 ¶ 322 (Second Report and Order). We also created an internal guard band in the 768-769 MHz and 798-799 MHz bands located between the broadband and narrowband allocations. *Id.* 

<sup>6</sup> See Second Report and Order, 22 FCC Rcd at 15406 ¶ 322.

<sup>7</sup> See Implementing a Nationwide, Broadband, Interoperable Public Safety Network in the 700 MHz Band, PS Docket No. 06-229, *Order*, 22 FCC Rcd 20453 (2007).

<sup>8</sup> *Id.* at 15428 ¶ 386.

<sup>9</sup> Id.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> See infra Appendix A.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> See 47 U.S.C. § 337.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> See Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, Pub. L. No. 109-171, 120 Stat. 4 (2006).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> See Balanced Budget Act of 1997, Pub. L. No. 105-33, 111 Stat. 251 § 3004 (1997) (adding new § 337 of the Communications Act); Reallocation of Television Channels 60-69, the 746-806 MHz Band, ET Docket No. 97-157, *Report and Order*, 12 FCC Rcd 22953, 22955 ¶ 5 (1998), *recon.* 13 FCC Rcd 21578 (1998) (*Upper 700 MHz Reallocation Order*).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> See Auction 73, 700 MHz Band, at <u>http://wireless.fcc.gov/auctions/default.htm?job=auction\_summary&id=73</u>.

licenses offered at Auction 73 were sold, no bidder met the reserve price for the nationwide D Block license.<sup>11</sup> In the *Second Further Notice* and *Third Further Notice*, the Commission sought comment on the best path forward for the D Block and the envisioned nationwide interoperable public safety broadband network.<sup>12</sup> To date, these proceedings remain open, and the envisioned partnership has not materialized.

7. Following the *Third Further Notice*, a number of public safety petitioners sought waiver of the Commission's rules in order to allow early deployment of local or regional public safety broadband networks in the public safety broadband spectrum.<sup>13</sup> On August 14, 2009, the Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau ("PSHSB" or "Bureau") issued a public notice ("Waiver PN") that sought comment on the petitions received.<sup>14</sup> The Bureau sought comment generally, as well as on several specific topics, including, among other things, timing for action on the petitions, the appropriate mechanism for authorizing early deployment, and standards for ensuring such deployments are interoperable.<sup>15</sup> We received comments from a range of entities, including the PSST, several public safety associations, commercial providers, and the individual Petitioners. Commenters were generally supportive of the waiver requests, so long as any grant was appropriately conditioned to ensure the Commission's interoperability goals remain achievable.

8. The PSST also submitted, in an ex parte filing, a report completed by the National Public Safety Telecommunications Council ("NPSTC") Broadband Task Force ("BBTF"), which addressed

<sup>13</sup> See City of Boston Request for Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed Dec. 11, 2008) (Boston Petition); City of Boston Amended Request for Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed May 28, 2009) (Boston Amended Petition); City and County of San Francisco, City of Oakland, City of San Jose Request for Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed Mar. 24, 2009) (Bay Area Petition); City and County of San Francisco, City of Oakland, City of San Francisco, City of Oakland, City of San Jose Request for Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed May 28, 2009) (Bay Area Amended Petition); State of New Jersey Petition, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed Apr. 3, 2009) (New Jersey Petition); City of New York Petition for Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed June 8, 2009) (New York City Petition); District of Columbia Request for Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed June 26, 2009) (DC Petition); New York State Request for Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed June 26, 2009) (DC Petition); New York State Request for Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed June 30, 2009) (Chesapeake Petition); City of San Antonio, Texas, Petition for Expedited Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed July 10, 2009) (San Antonio Petition); North Dakota Petition, note 1, *supra*; Petition for Waiver of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed Aug 4., 2009) (Charlotte Petition); Petition for Expedited Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed Auger, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed July 10, 2009) (New Mexico Petition); North Dakota Petition, note 1, *supra*; Petition for Waiver of the City of Charlotte, North Carolina, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed Aug 4., 2009) (Charlotte Petition); Petition for Expedited Waiver, PS Docket No. 06-229 (filed Auger, PS Docket

<sup>14</sup> Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau Seeks Comment on Petitions for Waiver to Deploy 700 MHz Public Safety Broadband Networks, DA 09-1819 (rel. Aug. 14, 2009) (*Waiver PN*). Since the public notice was issued, additional petitions were filed, including LA-RICS Joint Power Authority (filed Nov. 16, 2009) (LA-RICS Petition), Pembroke Pines, FL (filed Nov. 18, 2009) (Pembroke Pines Petition), Adams County Communications Center, CO (filed Dec. 10, 2009) (Adams County Petition), City of Seattle, WA (filed Jan 15, 2010) (Seattle Petition), Calumet, Outagamie and Winnebago Counties, WI (filed Mar. 10, 2010) (Wisconsin Petition), the State of Mississippi (filed Mar. 23, 2010) (Mississippi Petition), the city of Mesa, AZ and the TOPAZ Regional Wireless Cooperative (filed Apr. 14, 2010) (Mesa Petition); the State of Oregon (filed Apr. 30, 2010) (Oregon Petition); and the State of Alabama (filed May 10, 2010).

<sup>15</sup> *Id.* at 6-7.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> See id.; see also Auction of 700 MHz Band Licenses Closes, *Public Notice*, DA 08-595 (rel. Mar. 20, 2008) (700 MHz Auction Closing Public Notice). <u>http://wireless fcc.gov/auctions/default htm?job=auction\_summary&id=73</u>.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> See Service Rules for the 698-746, 747-762 and 777-792 Bands; Implementing a Nationwide, Broadband, Interoperable Public Safety Network in the 700 MHz Band, WT Docket No. 06-150, PS Docket No. 06-229, 22 FCC Rcd 8047 (2008) (Second Further Notice); 23 FCC Rcd 14301 (2008) (*Third Further Notice*).

recommended conditions for the waiver petitions to help ensure such deployments are interoperable.<sup>16</sup> The Bureau sought comment on the PSST's filing and the NPSTC BBTF recommendations.<sup>17</sup> Commenters were generally supportive of the technical recommendations of the NPSTC BBTF, including the mandatory use of Long Term Evolution ("LTE") as an air interface, while recognizing that this standard is not yet fully developed.<sup>18</sup> It was noted, however, that all of the recommendations may not be capable of implementation on day one and additional requirements may be necessary to ensure interoperability, but that the framework offered by the BBTF provided a reasonable baseline.<sup>19</sup>

#### **III. DISCUSSION**

#### A. Timing

9. In the *Waiver PN*, the Bureau sought comment on whether we could act on the waiver petitions in advance of completing the larger rulemaking addressing the public safety broadband spectrum.<sup>20</sup> Several public safety commenters urged the Commission to act expeditiously, citing the pressing need for access to broadband communications to facilitate life-saving services.<sup>21</sup> Others cite timing concerns related to funding,<sup>22</sup> or the experience and efficiencies that may be gained by allowing deployments now rather than waiting for completion of the rulemaking.<sup>23</sup> Others, however, urge the Commission to defer action on the Petitions, citing concerns about the ability to integrate any early deployments into a later network, harming interoperability.<sup>24</sup> Commenters also cite the uncertainty surrounding the D Block as a reason to delay action, suggesting that the Commission should wait until resolution of the Commission's ongoing proceeding, or until Congressional uncertainty regarding the fate of the D Block is resolved.<sup>25</sup>

10. As an initial matter, we find that we may act on the waiver requests in advance of a resolution of the larger rulemaking, and should do so here in light of the pressing need for public safety to begin development and deployment of wireless broadband network infrastructure. In particular, we agree that public safety must act expeditiously to take advantage of current and imminent development of 4G technology by commercial providers, which will provide the technological basis for deployment in the

<sup>18</sup> Motorola NPSTC PN Comments at 1-2; IP Wireless NPSTC PN Comments at 1; Harris Corp. NPSTC PN Comments at 3.

<sup>19</sup> New Mexico NPSTC PN Comments at 2-3; LA-RICS NPSTC PN Comments at 3; Bay Area NPSTC PN Comments at 2.

<sup>20</sup> See Waiver PN.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> See Public Safety Spectrum Trust Ex Parte Filing, PS Docket 06-229 (Dec. 15, 2009) (entering into the docket National Public Safety Telecommunications Council, 700 MHz Public Safety Broadband Task Force Report and Recommendations (2009) (*NPSTC BBTF Report*)).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> See Comment Sought on NPSTC Broadband Task Force and Public Safety Spectrum Trust Technical Recommendations for 700 MHz Public Safety Broadband Deployments, PS Docket. 06-229, *Public Notice*, DA 10-458 (rel. Mar. 17, 2010) (*NPSTC PN*).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> Boston Comments at 2; American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Reply Comments at 3; San Antonio Comments at 4; New York State Comments at 1; NPSTC Comments at 4; LeGrande Technical and Social Services, LLC at 3; Flow Mobile Comments at 2-4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> Boston Comments at 2, 7; New Mexico Comments at 3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>23</sup> San Francisco Comments at 2-4; King County Comments at 9

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA) Comments at 1-2; Sprint Nextel Comments at 1, 4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>25</sup> Sprint Nextel Reply Comments at 13-16.

700 MHz band beginning later this year.<sup>26</sup> By providing a framework for Petitioners to move towards initial deployment in the same time frame, subject to the conditions in this order, we enable public safety to become engaged in the broader 4G development process to ensure that the process addresses public safety as well as commercial needs.<sup>27</sup> We encourage Petitioners to participate in 4G standards development, as well as to identify opportunities for joint planning and deployment that can be incorporated into Requests for Proposal, which will help realize cost benefits.<sup>28</sup> While the pendency of the rulemaking and the goal of the Commission to ensure a nationwide interoperable public safety network require us to proceed cautiously, we find that the inclusion of certain conditions will allow us to act now, rather than later, expediting relief to the Petitioners.<sup>29</sup> Action now will provide Petitioners with a degree of certainty, allowing them to take advantage of funding opportunities and leverage existing deployment plans that may be time sensitive.<sup>30</sup>

11. In this respect, we disagree with the suggestion that we cannot proceed with consideration of these waivers before finishing the larger rulemaking proceeding.<sup>31</sup> Rather, by including carefully tailored conditions here, we mitigate any possible concern regarding "prejudgment." Moreover, accommodating the pressing need for timely deployment, coupled with these conditions, will provide public safety with a viable path forward that will not interfere with the Commission's resolution of any outstanding rulemaking issues. These early deployments may also assist the Commission in understanding what additional issues may arise for public safety in connection with the larger goal of establishing a nationwide interoperable broadband network and serve better to inform all parties as we proceed with the related rulemaking proceedings. In this regard, many of the Petitioners also plan to participate in the demonstration network sponsored by the Public Safety Communications Research ("PSCR") program (which is a partnership between the National Institute of Standards and Technology ("NIST") and the National Telecommunications and Information Administration ("NTIA")) and the District of Columbia ("the PSCR/DC Demonstration Network"),<sup>32</sup> which will provide a complementary path to informing our decision making.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>26</sup> We note, for example, announced plans by Verizon Wireless and AT&T to begin LTE deployments this year. *See*, *e.g.*, Matt Hamblen, AT&T and Verizon Race for 4G Deployment, Macworld (Feb. 10, 2010), *available at* <u>http://www.macworld.com/article/146287/2010/02/att\_lte.html</u>; Matt Hamblen, Verizon Wireless Flexes LTE Muscle at CES, Computerworld (Jan. 7, 2010), *available at* 

http://www.computerworld.com/s/article/9143398/Verizon Wireless flexes LTE muscle at CES; AT&T Selects LTE Equipment Suppliers (Feb. 10, 2010) available at http://www.att.com/gen/press-room?pid=4800&cdvn=news&newsarticleid=30493&mapcode=financial|Wireless.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>27</sup> See Federal Communications Comm'n, Connecting America: The National Broadband Plan at 318 (2010) (*National Broadband Plan*); see also Federal Communications Comm'n, A Broadband Network Cost Model: A Basis for Public Funding Essential to Bringing Nationwide Interoperable Communications to America's First Responders (2010) (*Cost Model Paper*).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>28</sup> See National Broadband Plan at 315-16.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>29</sup> See TOPAZ Regional Wireless Cooperative Comments at 2; Telecommunications Industry Association Comments at 3;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>30</sup> See, e.g., Boston Amended Petition at 6; Bay Area Amended Petition at 3-4; Adams County Petition at 10; Oregon Petition at 2-3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>31</sup> See, Sprint Nextel Comments at 1, 4; Sprint Nextel Reply Comments at 13-16.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>32</sup> See Press Release, Nat'l Inst. of Standards and Tech., Demonstration Network Planned for Public Safety 700 MHz Broadband (Dec. 15, 2009), *available at* http://www.nist.gov/eeel/oles/network\_121509.cfm (last visited Apr. 26, 2010).

12. The Commission has always contemplated some opportunity for early build out.<sup>33</sup> Our decision allowing a conditioned early build, at the Petitioners' own risk, remains subject to our later determinations and is without prejudice to our resolution of any of these issues in the broader rulemaking. For this same reason, early build out will not, as Sprint Nextel contends, risk the implicit cross subsidization model that served as the premise for one of several proposals in the *Third Further Notice* for provisioning broadband to rural areas.<sup>34</sup>

#### B. Waiver Standard

13. To obtain a waiver of the Commission's rules, a petitioner must demonstrate either that: (i) the underlying purpose of the rule(s) would not be served or would be frustrated by application to the present case, and that a grant of the waiver would be in the public interest; or (ii) in view of unique or unusual factual circumstances of the instant case, application of the rule(s) would be inequitable, unduly burdensome, or contrary to the public interest, or the applicant has no reasonable alternative.<sup>35</sup> We find that the waivers, as conditioned below, may be granted under either prong of this standard.

Under the first prong, we find that the underlying purpose of the rules would not be 14. served by applying them to the instant cases, and that a conditional grant is in the public interest. The general purpose of the rules in question is to facilitate a nationwide interoperable public safety broadband wireless network. While the rules adopted prior to Auction 73 contemplated a mandatory partnership with the commercial D Block licensee, the circumstances that would have permitted that partnership to proceed did not materialize because no bid met the reserve price for the D Block at auction. We find that we may still advance the goal of nationwide interoperability by granting the waiver requests with appropriate conditions. In this regard, we note that our recent decision to establish the Emergency Response Interoperability Center ("ERIC") will promote appropriate technical requirements that will ensure interoperability for these early deployments from their inception, as well as for any future deployed networks.<sup>36</sup> Moreover, the public interest is served by allowing jurisdictions to begin deployment and speed services to the public safety community. This will also allow Petitioners to take advantage of available or potential funding, either through grants or planned budgetary expenditures, as well as to take advantage of economies of scale and other cost saving measures for deployments that are already planned.<sup>37</sup> In addition, Petitioners could benefit from the announced plans of some commercial carriers to begin construction of LTE-based networks this year and early next year, which would result in significant cost-savings.<sup>38</sup>

15. We find that the waiver standard may also be met under the second prong, in that unique or unusual factual circumstances exist that would make the application of the rules contrary to the public interest. In this regard, we note the critical public safety need for prompt deployment and access to broadband communications infrastructure that meets public safety's needs.<sup>39</sup> As noted previously, because the D Block did not receive a winning bid, the factual circumstances that the rules assumed

<sup>33</sup> See Second Report and Order at 15453-58 ¶¶ 469-484; 47 C.F.R. § 90.1430.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>34</sup> Sprint Comments at 6.

<sup>35 47</sup> C.F.R. §§ 1.925(b)(3)(i-ii).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>36</sup> See Establishment of an Emergency Response Interoperability Center, GN Docket No. 09-51, PS Docket No. 06-229, *Order*, FCC 10-67 (rel. Apr. 23, 2010). ERIC is tasked with implementing national interoperability standards and developing technical and operational procedures for the 700 MHz public safety broadband wireless network. *Id.* at 1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>37</sup> See, e.g., Bay Area Amended Petition at 7-8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>38</sup> See Cost Model Paper at 9-12.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>39</sup> See, e.g., Boston Comments at 2, 7; AASHTO Reply Comments at 3; Ericsson Comments at 1.

would exist did not come to fruition. The waiver requests also have the support of the PSST, which holds the license to the spectrum in question. Also, some Petitioners assert they have funding options available to them presently, and thus timely relief that would allow the Petitioners to capitalize on these funding opportunities is in the public interest.<sup>40</sup> We also note that the potential for cost efficiencies from joint deployments, either with respect to commercial carriers deploying LTE or coupling broadband deployment with other planned public safety deployments, militates in favor of allowing Petitioners to proceed as soon as possible. Finally, the passage of time since Auction 73 also counsels in favor of granting relief.

16. However, while we have yet to resolve a number of related issues concerning the public safety broadband and D Block spectrum, our overarching goal remains finding the best method to enable public safety to have access to a state of the art nationwide interoperable public safety wireless broadband network. While the Petitions make clear the need for prompt action, they lack the details that would ensure the proposed deployments are compatible with our overall goals in the 700 MHz band. Accordingly, we find that the Petitions and associated pleadings to date provide a sufficient basis for *conditional* grant only, and that additional information is needed and will be required for submission to the Bureau and the newly-established ERIC prior to granting full authority to construct and operate 700 MHz public safety networks. We specify these conditions next.

#### C. Conditions

17. The majority of commenters support some form of relief for Petitioners. Most, however, also suggest that relief must include certain conditions.<sup>41</sup> Conditions advocated include: (1) obtaining a lease, sublicense or other agreement from the PSST;<sup>42</sup> (2) use of a common technology or air interface;<sup>43</sup> (3) roaming capability;<sup>44</sup> (4) interoperability;<sup>45</sup> (5) compatibility with any subsequent network or decision of the Commission;<sup>46</sup> (6) concrete plans for deployment and/or funding;<sup>47</sup> (7) inclusion of satellite capability in any network deployed pursuant to waiver; and (8) compliance with existing rules that permit the PSBL to approval Federal use.<sup>48</sup> Several commenters also suggest that the conditions must be identical for all of the Petitioners.<sup>49</sup>

18. We agree that, in order to preserve the Commission's goals and to meet the standards for waiver in the first instance, our grant must include several conditions imposed equally and jointly on all

<sup>42</sup> NPSTC Comments at 4; Pinellas County at 2; APCO Reply Comments at 4.

<sup>43</sup> APCO Comments at 9-10; PSST Comments at 16-18; Motorola at 10.

<sup>44</sup> National Emergency Number Association (NENA) Comments at 3; PSST Comments at 16-18; LeGrande Comments at 2-3; US Cellular Comments at 5; New York City Comments at 6-7.

<sup>45</sup> APCO Comments at 9-10; NPSTC Comments at 4; Pinellas County at 2; APCO Reply Comments at 4; NENA Comments at 3; PSST at 16-18; San Antonio Comments at 4; Connecticut Comments at 4; Boston Comments at 3-4;US Cellular Comments at 5.

<sup>46</sup> APCO Comments at 4-5; NENA Comments at 3; PSST Comments at 8-9; AASHTO Reply Comments at 3; Connecticut Comments at 3; San Francisco Comments at 6.

<sup>47</sup> NENA Comments at 3; North Dakota Comments at 27.

<sup>48</sup> MSS/ATC Coalition Comments at 3; Satellite Industry Association (SIA) Comments at 3-4; PSST Reply Comments at 10; NTIA Comments at 2.

<sup>49</sup> Connecticut Comments at 4; Boston Comments at 5; New Mexico Comments at 7-8; San Antonio Comments at 8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>40</sup> See, e.g., Alcatel-Lucent Comments at 4-5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>41</sup> See, e.g., Association of Public Safety Communications Officials-International (APCO) Comments; San Antonio Comments at 1-2.

Petitioners. The conditions we impose will help ensure that deployments that proceed pursuant to our decision today will be compatible with each other, and with any later actions to establish a nationwide interoperable public safety broadband network. Further, they will ensure that waiver applicants have equal access and comparable terms under which they must operate. These conditions will provide certainty that will aid Petitioners in developing networks that will serve their needs, and the needs of their communities in a timely and cost-efficient manner.

19. In this respect we disagree with King County, which suggests that we should grant the waivers without imposing any conditions.<sup>50</sup> King County argues "[t]he Commission's first concern regarding its waiver decisions should be their impact on local and regional wireless public safety operability. Even if nation-wide, wireless public safety interoperability is a desirable and achievable goal, the Commission must not focus on that goal *u*ntil local and regional wireless operability is first achieved. We are not near that point.<sup>50</sup> While we agree that operability is vital, we disagree that the Commission can sacrifice its long term goals of interoperability in favor of a short term operability goal. Indeed, the lack of long term planning by public safety narrowband deployments. Moreover, deferring consideration of interoperability until a later date would likely result in missed opportunities for efficiency, driving up costs and creating communications gaps in the interim. We find, therefore, that imposition of conditions is the best way to facilitate both the goals of operability and interoperability. Indeed, our primary goal throughout this proceeding has been to fully take advantage of the opportunity that a new spectrum allocation presents for ensuring a nationwide level of interoperability from the start.

#### 1. Spectrum Leasing

20. First, we agree with commenters who suggest that, as a condition of waiver relief, Petitioners should be required to enter into spectrum leasing arrangements with the PSST, which holds the nationwide license for the spectrum in which Petitioners seek authority to operate.<sup>52</sup> While the Commission's existing rules contemplate that the PSBL would lease the public safety broadband spectrum to individual public safety jurisdictions only in limited early-build situations,<sup>53</sup> we find that it is in the public interest to waive those rules to the extent necessary for the limited purpose of permitting the leasing arrangements described below.<sup>54</sup>

21. Some waiver petitioners and commenters have suggested that the Petitioners should be allowed to operate pursuant to a "sub-license" or other similar mechanism. However, we find that the existing spectrum leasing rules, with some modification, provide the most workable framework for granting conditional authority to Petitioners.<sup>55</sup> This is because we have considerable experience with secondary markets leasing for commercial services, and have found the secondary markets framework to be an effective way to ensure accountability to the Commission by both the licensee and the spectrum lessee, while still allowing the lessee adequate flexibility, as well as sufficient rights and certainty.<sup>56</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>50</sup> King County Reply Comments at 1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>51</sup> *Id*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>52</sup> APCO Comments at 5-6.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>53</sup> See Second Report and Order at 15453-58 ¶¶ 469-484; 47 C.F.R. §§ 27.1330, 90.1430.

<sup>54</sup> See 47 C.F.R. § 1.9001 et seq.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>55</sup> See id.; see also Promoting Efficient Use of Spectrum Through Elimination of Barriers to the Development of Secondary Markets, WT Docket No. 00-230, Second Report and Order on Reconsideration and Second Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, 19 FCC Rcd 17503, 17529 ¶ 53 (2004) ("Secondary Markets Second Report and Order").

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>56</sup> Secondary Markets Second Report and Order.

22. For similar reasons, we reject the suggestion of Harris that we employ a "status-based" framework to designate primary and secondary status for deployments made pursuant to waiver.<sup>57</sup> The framework Harris suggests is overly complicated, and unnecessary in light of our determination to allow deployment only at Petitioners' own risk and on the condition of compliance with any later determinations in the overarching proceeding. In this respect, we anticipate that we will address any concerns regarding how and when such integration will occur in that Order, and our determinations can be shaped by factual circumstances at that time including the progress of any waiver deployments and the information generated by the Demonstration Network.

23. We also recognize that, whereas commercial parties seeking to enter into a spectrum lease have many frequency bands and licensees (lessors) available to them, the Petitioners have only the PSST as a potential lessor. Moreover, it has been the Commission's longstanding goal to promote interoperability for public safety in this band, the basis for which will be enhanced by ensuring consistent lease terms and equal access to this spectrum for public safety lessees. Given the unique licensing conditions of the public safety broadband spectrum, and in the interest of transparency and ensuring consistency of terms for waiver recipients, we also find that it is appropriate to provide additional structure for these leases.

24. First, we direct the PSST to enter into *de facto* transfer leases with each Petitioner that seeks a lease in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Order. We also agree with NENA that oversight of the agreements between the Petitioners and the PSST will encourage transparency, consistency, and facilitate enforcement.<sup>58</sup> As with our current secondary markets rules, we will require that these *de facto* transfer leases must be submitted for approval, in this case by the Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau on delegated authority. We expect, however, that these leases will be approved expeditiously and on a pro forma basis, so long as they adhere to the Standard Lease appended hereto, and as described below.

25. Lease Agreement. We agree with the PSST and other commenters that a "term sheet" for these leases will provide greater consistency and help establish expectations for all involved.<sup>59</sup> Requiring adherence to a term sheet is also consistent with the nascent nature of deployment in this spectrum and the novel nature of the relationship between the PSST and the Petitioners, as well as the unique licensing scheme adopted by the Commission in the *Second Report and Order* in which we provided for a single, nationwide public safety broadband licensee. However, for these same reasons, we find it necessary to go one step further and provide a "Standard Lease" that the PSST and the Petitioners shall use. The Standard Lease, which is based on the term sheet that was proposed by the NPSTC BBTF and endorsed by the PSST, is appended to this Order in Appendix B.

26. We find that specific, standard terms are necessary to facilitate prompt deployment and the streamlined leasing process that we envision. In particular, given our establishment of ERIC, we find it appropriate to include in the Standard Lease provisions that govern: (1) interactions among the PSST, the lessee, and ERIC; and (2) the parties' implementation of technical standards that ERIC, PSHSB and the Commission adopt. We also include in the Standard Lease additional provisions to reflect other conditions imposed by this Order. We expect that the PSST and Petitioners will not need to deviate from, or revise the terms of, the Standard Lease. However, in the event that the Standard Lease requires minor modification in individual cases to address issues specific to the lessee's jurisdiction (*e.g.*, aspects of the jurisdiction's contracting process or legal authority that we have not anticipated),<sup>60</sup> the PSST and the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>57</sup> Harris Comments at 4-5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>58</sup> NENA Comments at 4-5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>59</sup> NPSTC Reply Comments of PSST at 5-6; *see also*, New Mexico Comments at 4; New Mexico Reply Comments at 4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>60</sup> Charlotte, North Carolina NPSTC PN Reply Comments at 3-4.

lessee may make minor modifications to the Standard Lease with approval from the Bureau on delegated authority. More substantive changes will be entertained only upon sufficient demonstration of need and will be subject to full Commission approval.

27. Because we are providing a Standard Lease, we also find that it would be in the public interest to require such leases be executed and submitted to the Chief, PSHSB, within 60 days of approval by OMB. In this respect, again, if such a timeframe does not comport with a state or local review or contracting process, minor deviation from this timeframe may be permitted with the approval of the Bureau. We believe, however, that prompt execution is realistic, consistent with the expressed desire of the Petitioners and PSST for prompt action, and will ensure that jurisdictions are fully committed to moving forward with a productive relationship with the PSST, ERIC and the Commission to realize the public safety benefits that these early deployments can provide.

28. *Type of Lease – Long Term De Facto Transfer Lease.* We find that the use of a long term *de facto* transfer spectrum lease for purposes of these early deployments is appropriate.<sup>61</sup> Although our standard leasing rules provide for spectrum manager leases as an alternative to *de facto* leases, we conclude that under the circumstances presented here, the *de facto* transfer lease rules provide the appropriate balance between local control and national-level oversight that both Petitioners and the PSST seek.<sup>62</sup> Petitioners generally seek substantive operational rights, privileges, and responsibilities in the public safety broadband spectrum within their jurisdictions sufficient to justify investment of public funds and effort, while the PSST seeks appropriate retention of control over the spectrum commensurate with its status as the national public safety broadband licensee.<sup>63</sup> A long term *de facto* lease provides this balance, by placing upon the Petitioners the primary responsibility for complying with the Communications Act and applicable Commission policies and rules, including those established in this Order, while preserving *de jure* control of the spectrum license for the PSST.

29. Leasing Fee and Role of PSST. NPSTC and the PSST suggest that, as a part of any leasing arrangement, the PSST should be permitted to charge a lease fee to recover certain operating costs for the PSST.<sup>64</sup> Neither party proposes a specific fee level or amount, but both suggest that it should be subject to negotiation.<sup>65</sup> We conclude that the Standard Lease should include provision for a reasonable fee to be paid to the PSST for administrative activities associated with the leasing process, but that the fee should be strictly limited and subject to PSHSB approval as discussed below.

30. In assessing the appropriateness of a fee, we note the important role that the PSST serves in the leasing context. Clearly, the PSST will need to ensure that it meets its responsibility to retain *de jure* control of the public safety broadband spectrum. By virtue of its role, the PSST must enter into a lease with each Petitioner, and may enter into similar leases with other public safety entities as well as provided in this Order. We recognize that the PSST will incur limited but legitimate transaction costs in preparing and executing these leases, which we conclude they should be allowed to recover. The PSST will have a role in providing important input into the framework being developed by ERIC that defines the interoperability criteria for the Petitioners' early deployments. As described herein, we are also

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>61</sup> We believe the Long Term *de facto* transfer lease is most appropriate, in that it allows the lessee, rather than the licensee, to exercise *de facto* control over the leased spectrum. Under this standard, the lessee is primarily responsible for adhering to the Commission's rules, although the licensee retains residual responsibility for ensuring compliance. *See Secondary Markets Report and Order* at 17566-81 ¶¶ 133-188.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>62</sup> Iowa State Board Reply Comments at 2-3 (supporting use of a long term spectrum lease).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>63</sup> Boston Comments at 3; Iowa Comments at 2; PSST Comments at 9-12.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>64</sup> PSST Comments at 10-11.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>65</sup> *Id.*; Bay Area NPSTC PN Comments at 4 (supporting a "reasonable" fee for coordination and management responsibilities). *But see* Charlotte Reply Comments at 5-6 (opposing any fees charged by the PSST).

including minimal reporting requirements on the PSST and the lessees, which we will require be coordinated with the PSST. Such coordination may warrant occasional meetings and interactions between the PSST and the Petitioners.

31. We also recognize the unique circumstance that the PSST has an exclusive nationwide license and is accordingly the only entity from which an entity seeking early deployment can obtain a lease. This results in a potential imbalance in bargaining positions, and accordingly we find it appropriate to limit any fee that the PSBL may assess in conjunction with these leases.

32. While the PSST has asserted that it should be allowed to charge a leasing fee that will recover operating expenses including a portion of the costs of the "past, current and future efforts" of the PSST that benefit the Petitioners, we are concerned that lack of specificity with respect to this element of the lease may create uncertainty, confusion or delay in executing the necessary agreements. We also anticipate that because we are specifying the terms of the lease, the costs for executing these leases will be minimal.<sup>66</sup> Accordingly, we limit the fee that the PSST may charge to an administrative fee that will provide for the PSST's legitimate expenses incurred as a result of administering these leases.<sup>67</sup>

33. In this respect, before the PSST will be permitted to assess such a fee through the spectrum leases we authorize herein, we require the PSST to provide the Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau with a budget for carrying out the responsibilities we identified above within 30-days of the release of this Order, including how the fee would be structured, collected, and expended. We delegate authority to the Bureau to review the PSST's submission. We expect that the fees will be reasonable and limited, in that we are specifying the Standard Lease and expect the PSST's role to be administrative. As an added safeguard, we also require the Bureau to seek public comment on the PSST's submission before issuing any approval. Once approved, and as a condition of receipt of such fees, we require the PSST to submit monthly reports to the Bureau, providing a simple accounting of fees collected and how such fees are expended, based on generally accepted accounting principles. As we do not wish this requirement to add undue burden or expense, we expect that this can be done in conjunction with any financial reporting or recordkeeping that the PSST already maintains as a part of its business operations and to use generally accepted accounting procedures. We also require, as a condition of receipt of such fees, that the PSST shall be subject to periodic audit with respect to its collection and expenditure of these fees, at the discretion of the Chief, PSHSB.

34. *Eligible Users*. The 700 MHz public safety spectrum is governed by Section 337 of the Act.<sup>68</sup> In this respect, and consistent with the tentative conclusion in the *Third FNPRM*, we limit use of the 700 MHz spectrum to entities whose "sole or principal purpose" is "to protect the safety of life, health, or property" and who meet the remaining requirements of Section 337(f). Commenters agree with this assessment.<sup>69</sup> Issues concerning broader use of the 700 MHz public safety broadband spectrum will be addressed in the larger rulemaking proceeding, and deferral of consideration of this issue will not otherwise impair the Petitioners' early deployment plans. We note, however, that permitted use does

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>66</sup> We note that the issue of funding for the PSST's activities generally remains an open issue in the rulemaking, and accordingly we defer any determination with respect to this issue until we consider the PSST's role more globally.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>67</sup> See, e.g., NENA Comments at 4-5 (suggesting that the Commission should make clear that any such fees may only be used to support activities directly related to the deployment and utilization of public safety wireless broadband networks).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>68</sup> 47 U.S.C. § 337.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>69</sup> See, e.g. PSST Comments at 19; Boston Comments at 5; New York State Comments at 4; Bay Area Comments at 8-9; Ericsson Comments at 4-5; AASHTO Reply Comments at 7; Alcatel-Lucent Reply Comments at 7-8).

include Federal government users, as already allowed by our rules.<sup>70</sup> Accordingly, we leave intact the current rules permitting Federal agency access to the 700 MHz public safety broadband spectrum.

#### 2. Evidence of Funding

35. The Bureau sought comment in the *Waiver PN* on whether we should require evidence of financing as a condition precedent to acting on Petitioners' request. While APCO and others have urged the Commission to require "evidence that there *is sufficient* funding available to support all aspects of the deployment" prior to granting a waiver,<sup>71</sup> we find that requiring parties to submit plans to ERIC to ensure technical consistency and interoperability, as more fully explained below, is a sufficient safeguard to ensure that Petitioners' plans are concrete and viable. Moreover, as detailed below, we are requiring that Petitioners submit quarterly reports on their activity undertaken pursuant to this Order to ensure that deployments are undertaken with diligence. We also agree with the comments of the District of Columbia, which argues that local Petitioners may be unable to obtain financing without a waiver in the first instance, which would provide financiers or grant-making entities with the certainty necessary to justify commitment of funds.<sup>73</sup> Accordingly, we will not require evidence of funding at this time. Rather, we find that the other conditions and reporting requirements specified herein will be sufficient to ensure that the requests made are in earnest, and that deployments made pursuant to these requests are undertaken promptly.

#### **3.** Technical Conditions

36. In considering whether to permit early deployment pursuant to the waiver petitions, the Bureau sought comment on what technical, operational and governance standards, if any, should be required as a condition, including whether the Commission should require a common air interface, common technical or organizational governance structures, roaming capabilities, and interoperability with future national or regional networks.<sup>74</sup> Since the *Waiver PN* was issued, the Bureau also sought comment on the recommendations by NPSTC BBTF and the PSST with respect to these issues.<sup>75</sup> With respect to the BBTF Report, the District of Columbia notes that, while valuable, the recommendations of the BBTF are necessarily general, and that "disparate networks could comply with its requirements and still fall short of interoperability."<sup>76</sup> Similarly, while many of the Petitioners suggest that their proposed networks will conform to the technical parameters proposed by the *Third Further Notice*, complying with those standards alone may not achieve true interoperability without additional coordination, both technically and in terms of governance. Several commenters also endorse the recommendation of the NPSCT BBTF and the PSST that an "advisory group" of waiver recipients must work with the PSST in establishing and updating the technical criteria under which any early deployment operates.<sup>77</sup> Accordingly, we find it appropriate to require the petitioners to adhere to the technical criteria that ERIC will establish, through

<sup>75</sup> See NPSTC PN.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>70</sup> Second Report and Order at fn. 822; see also 47 C.F.R. § 90.175(g); NTIA Comments at 2-3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>71</sup> APCO Comments at 9; see also Iowa Statewide Interoperable Communications Board Comments at 1; NENA Comments at 3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>72</sup> See APCO Comments at 8-9 (endorsing submission of periodic reports).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>73</sup> District of Columbia Reply Comments at 5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>74</sup> *Waiver PN* at 7-8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>76</sup> District of Columbia NPSTC PN Comments at 2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>77</sup> *See, e.g.*, New Mexico Comments at 6; San Antonio Comments at 5; Bay Area Comments at 6. *But see* Charlotte Reply Comments at 3 (arguing that there should be no obligation for "preapproval" of deployment plans by the PSBL or the Commission).

rules adopted by the Commission or Bureau.<sup>78</sup> In this respect, we also agree with commenters who suggest that: (1) we should adopt a mandatory common air interface for all early deployments;<sup>79</sup> (2) in addition to the air interface, certain additional baseline interoperability criteria are timely and appropriate;<sup>80</sup> and (3) Petitioners should be required to submit further technical details regarding their deployments in order to ensure ongoing interoperability.<sup>81</sup> We also note that many of these obligations are a part of the 3GPP Release 8 standard, and as such will likely impose little burden to implement.

37. Long Term Evolution. As part of the Waiver PN, the Bureau sought comment on whether we should require a common air interface for Petitioners' deployments.<sup>82</sup> Many of the waiver petitioners have indicated that they plan to employ Long Term Evolution, or LTE, to build out their broadband networks.<sup>83</sup> Petitioners assert that "the selection of LTE is probably the first step to achieving the goal of nationwide interoperability"<sup>84</sup> and further assert that such networks "will meet the specifications proposed by the Commission in its *Third Further Notice*."<sup>85</sup> The PSST also supports use of LTE for these early deployments, to promote a uniform technology standard.<sup>86</sup> AT&T, Northrup Grumman, and Motorola support using LTE for these early deployments as well, stating that such a condition would ensure operability, interoperability and future roaming.<sup>87</sup>

38. We agree that, for these waiver deployments, the most expeditious and reasonable method of ensuring consistency and interoperability at this early stage is to require the use of LTE, and specifically the use of at least 3GPP Standard, Evolved Universal Terrestrial Radio Access ("E-UTRA"), Release 8 ("LTE"), and associated Evolved Packet Core ("EPC").<sup>88</sup> While we recognize that the Commission does not typically require the use of a particular technology or standard, exceptions have been made in the context of nascent technologies and in the context of public safety to facilitate interoperability. We do not impose a technical standard in the present case lightly. However, we find it necessary to establish this condition for these early 700 MHz public safety networks to provide a clear path for initial deployment and evolution, ensuring interoperability and roaming among these systems in

- <sup>84</sup> Seattle at 13.
- <sup>85</sup> Seattle at 13; Hawaii at 10.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>78</sup> In this respect, we require the Bureau to issue a Public Notice to seek comment on the technical parameters adopted herein and other technical issues concerning broadband network deployment for consideration by the Commission in the broader rulemaking proceeding.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>79</sup> See APCO Comments at 9-10; NENA Comments at 3; New York State Comments at 2; NTCH, Inc. Comments at 2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>80</sup> See APCO Comments at 9-10; Boston Comments at 3-4; NENA Comments at 7-8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>81</sup> See NENA Comments at 6-7; PSST Comments at 15-16.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>82</sup> Waiver PN at 8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>83</sup> Seattle at 13; Hawaii at 9-10.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>86</sup> PSST Reply Comments at 1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>87</sup> Motorola at 4-5; Motorola Reply Comments at 2; Northrup Grumman at 7; AT&T at 10. *See also* US Cellular at 6; New York City at 6-7; New York State at 2; Alcatel-Lucent at 2-3; Iowa State Board at 2-3. *But see* Joint Comments of Sprint Nextel and Clearwire Corp. at 7-17.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>88</sup> We also recognize that, because the Commission has not yet adopted final technical rules for the public safety broadband spectrum (*e.g.*, maximum power levels, out-of-band emission requirements, etc.), there will not likely be certificated equipment for operation in this band prior to entities initiating system build out. Accordingly, so long as Petitioners and their manufacturers adhere to the requirement to utilize 3GPP Release 8 as specified in this Order, we also waive on our own motion, the equipment authorization rules (47 C.F.R. § 90.203 as applicable) until such time as we adopt final rules.

light of the characteristics of the band at this point in time. Several unique circumstances in particular, counsel in favor of establishing LTE as the common air interface. First, because many of the Petitioners are geographically disparate, they may lack incentives to meet a nationwide interoperability standard without a mandatory Commission-established requirement to do so. Second, commercial providers in the 700 MHz band are planning LTE deployments in the band in the near term, providing a unique opportunity for public safety to leverage this build out to their benefit.<sup>89</sup> Accordingly, requiring LTE as a waiver condition will align deployments in the 700 MHz band among the Petitioners, as well as between Petitioners and commercial networks in the band.<sup>90</sup> We also find persuasive the broad support in the record for specifying LTE, and specifically Release 8, in this band.

39. As detailed *infra*, however, we are also requiring Petitioners to submit an interoperability showing to ERIC to ensure that planned deployments are consistent with the Commission's interoperability goals and in recognition that the minimum requirements imposed herein may not guarantee interoperability. While we are requiring 3GPP Release 8 as the minimum LTE standard, we recognize that there may in some instances be a legitimate need to employ a 3GPP air interface standard earlier than 3GPP Release 8. We will, therefore, allow ERIC and the Bureau to consider use of an earlier 3GPP release on a case-by-case basis, with a clear need demonstrated in the interoperability showing. Proponents of deploying a release earlier that 3GPP Release 8 must, at a minimum, demonstrate that (1) such use is on an interim basis only, (2) there is a clear and firm commitment and path towards upgrade to a later release within a reasonable time frame, and (3) the proponents fully assume all financial risk in upgrading to a later release.

40. In requiring LTE for these initial deployments, we disagree with those that argue that the Commission should decline to adopt a common air interface for all Petitioners.<sup>91</sup> Rather, we reiterate that our overriding consideration here is to provide a reasonable and clearly defined path towards public safety interoperability, a goal that has proven previously to be elusive in the public safety narrowband context.<sup>92</sup> In this respect, a significant number of commenters, including many Petitioners, argue that the Commission must establish a common air interface, and specifically LTE, to ensure this goal is met.<sup>93</sup> NPSTC, for example, argues that because technology migrations pose a challenge in practice, the Commission should avoid allowing deployment of technology other than LTE, and should rather require LTE from the outset.<sup>94</sup> APCO also argues that interoperability must be required of Petitioners, including mandatory use of LTE.<sup>95</sup> We agree, particularly in light of the unique circumstances presented by the state of deployment in the band and our ongoing proceeding. Accordingly, we find that establishing LTE Release 8 as the initial standard to which Petitioners must build is the best and shortest path to the Commission's goal for public safety interoperability in the specific environment presented by the 700 MHz band at this time.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>89</sup> Federal Communications Commission, A Broadband Network Costs Model: A Basis for Public Funding Essential to Bringing Nationwide Interoperable Communications to America's First Responders, Omnibus Broadband Initiative Technical Paper No. 2 (2010).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>90</sup> Our selection of LTE in this regard is not an endorsement of this technology. Rather, it is a recognition of the fact that at this stage, LTE has become the technology of choice in the 700 MHz band, and that mandating compatibility with this air interface is appropriate for purposes of these waiver deployments to ensure interoperability.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>91</sup> See Sprint and Clearwire National Broadband Plan Joint Comments at 13-17.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>92</sup> See, e.g., 9/11 Commission Report at 280-300; United States Government Accountability Office, First Responders: Much Work Remains to Improve Communications Interoperability (Apr. 2007)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>93</sup> See New York City comments at 6-7; San Antonio Comments at 7-8; New York State Comments at 2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>94</sup> NPSTC Comments at 6.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>95</sup> APCO Comments at 9-10.

41. *Coordination among Petitioners.* Because public safety agencies will share the radio frequency band allocated to broadband services of common interest to these agencies, it is essential that advance planning and post-launch operational coordination be carried out with a common goal of minimizing radio frequency interference between them. Accordingly, we also establish a common methodology for coordination in the case where adjacent jurisdictions utilizing the public safety broadband spectrum build out local networks. This coordination requirement includes both pre- and post-operation obligations for all adjacent or bordering public safety networks.

42. These coordination requirements are necessary for deployments under this Order to ensure equitable access to the spectrum. In order to facilitate coordination of operations in adjacent jurisdictions, an agreed upon process for initial and ongoing communication among jurisdictions, in consultation with ERIC, will provide a solid mechanism for ensuring efficient, interference-free implementation and evolution of regional, statewide or local early-deployed networks. Accordingly, as a condition of waiver, we require each Petitioner, before deployment, to coordinate and address interference mitigation needs with any adjacent or bordering jurisdictions that also plan deployment. Any later jurisdictions that seek to deploy should coordinate with the prior-deployed system. Our goal is to ensure an open communications among adjacent regions. In this respect, in light of the nascent nature of these deployments, we believe it will be helpful to memorialize these agreements in writing, and require submission of these agreements to ERIC within 30 days of their completion. Similarly, we require that parties provide ERIC with notice of any changes or updates within 30 days. Should the parties be unable to reach an agreement within 90 days after coordination begins, they may submit the dispute to the Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau for resolution.

43. *Out of Band Emissions*. A number of measures can be considered to reduce the impact of interference to mobile wireless systems. Agencies should use mutually agreed upon practical solutions for eliminating out of band emissions ("OOBE") or other interference, such as software parameter changes, site configuration modifications, ensuring a reasonable distance of site equipment beyond the border, or the reduction of transmitter power levels towards the border. We note that we will separately consider the issue of rules for OOBE from public safety broadband spectrum into the D Block, and from the D Block into the public safety broadband spectrum.

44. As a condition of the waivers, for operations in the 763-768 MHz band and the 793-798 MHz band, the power of any emission outside the lessee's frequency band(s) of operation shall be attenuated below the transmitter power (P) within the licensed band(s) of operation, measured in watts, in accordance with the following:

- On any frequency outside the 763-768 MHz band, the power of any emission shall be attenuated outside the band below the transmitter power (P) by at least 43 + 10 log (P) dB; and
- On any frequency outside the 793-798 MHz band, the power of any emission shall be attenuated outside the band below the transmitter power (P) by at least 43 + 10 log (P) dB.

Compliance with the provisions of paragraphs above in this section is based on the use of measurement instrumentation employing a resolution bandwidth of 100 kHz or greater. However, in the 100 kHz bands immediately outside and adjacent to the frequency block, a resolution bandwidth of at least 30 kHz may be employed. Moreover, we note that OOBE standards are already in place with respect to the public safety narrowband spectrum, and the 700 MHz public safety spectrum allocation already includes a guard band between the public safety broadband and narrowband allocations.<sup>96</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>96</sup> 47 C.F.R. § 90.543(e).

45. *Roaming*. We agree with commenters and the NPSTC BBTF Report assertion that roaming is a fundamental requirement that must be addressed as a condition of early deployments, even with respect to initial operations.<sup>97</sup> Accordingly, we require each Petitioner's system to be capable of supporting roaming by all other Petitioners' systems, and to support roaming by additional future regional, state, Tribal and local public safety broadband systems. In this respect, two categories of roaming as specified in 3GPP Release 8 (TS 23.401) and the NPSTC BBTF Report must be supported: (1) home-routed traffic, such that a "visiting" user's traffic is routed back to the home network to enable the use of home resources, and (2) local breakout traffic, such that a visiting user can utilize the resources of the host network. We expect that ERIC will build on these roaming requirements as it considers the additional interoperability and governance requirements.

46. *Applications*. We also agree that there are several applications that can and should be supported by initially deployed systems.<sup>98</sup> In this respect, consistent with the NPSTC BBTF Report and to ensure that there are a common set of initial applications available on an interoperable, nationwide basis, we require, as a condition of waiver, that Petitioners' systems initially support the following applications: (1) Internet access; (2) VPN access to any authorized site and to home networks; (3) a status or information "homepage;" (4) access to responders under the Incident Command System;<sup>99</sup> (5) and field-based server applications.<sup>100</sup>

47. *System Characteristics, Interfaces and Testing.* The NPSTC BBTF recommends a number of technical specifications related to system characteristics, interfaces and testing in Section 6.3 of the report. We agree that the following technical specifications are reasonable, and can be sustained by initially deployed systems. Accordingly, we require Petitioners to incorporate the following system elements:

- Interfaces: All 3GPP Release 8 (LTE) interfaces that are in support of the required applications and the required roaming in this order are required to be supported. These interfaces are:
  - U<sub>u</sub>- LTE air interface
  - S6a Visited MME to Home HSS
  - S8 Visited SGW to Home PGW
  - S9 Visited PCRF to Home PCRF for dynamic policy arbitration
  - S10 MME to MME support for Category 1 handover support
  - X2 eNodeB to eNodeB

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>97</sup> See NPSTC BBTF Report at 1 (identifying as the Report's mission the development of "minimum recommendations necessary to ensure roaming and interoperability among localities and regions that have submitted waivers to the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) to build out 700 MHz broadband networks ahead of a nationwide network"); *see also* New Mexico Comments at 4; New York City Comments at 6-7; U.S. Cellular Comments at 5; PSST Comments at 16-18.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>98</sup> See NPSTC BBTF Report at 13-15.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>99</sup> First responders, emergency response support, and all other mutual aid responders managed under ICS structure of a requesting agency served by a public safety broadband network shall be provided access to that network to carry out incident objectives and communicate with their home networks." NPSTC BBTF Report, Section 6.2.5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>100</sup> "The regional systems shall support the use of field-deployed server applications. This requirement includes the need for client devices to consistently and continuously reach each server-based system from any other location on the Internet. The capability is not required for every subscriber device on the broadband network but is limited to a subset of the users that actually require such a feature." NPSTC BBTF Report, Section 6.2.7.

- Interface Interoperability Testing: The Interoperability Testing (IOT) must be performed on the following 3GPP Release 8 (LTE) interfaces:
  - S1-MME (interface between eNodeB and MME)
  - S1-u (interface between eNodeB and SGW)
  - U<sub>u</sub>- LTE air interface

Initially, we will permit Petitioners to demonstrate interoperability of the interfaces specified above by self-certification, which may be supplemented through demonstrations to ERIC. As 3GPP standards progress, however, we will require Petitioners to meet more detailed IOT requirements consistent with those standards.

- Devices: As recommended by Section 6.3.1.5 of the NPSTC BBTF Report, band class 14 must be supported for 5 MHz public safety broadband channel (763-768 MHz, 793-798 MHz) in Frequency Division Duplex (FDD) mode as per 3GPP TS 36.101 v8.6.0.
- Standards Conformance Testing: Standards conformance testing must be based on 3GPP test suites that are developed by the PCS Type Certification Review Board ("PTCRB").<sup>101</sup> If PTCRB testing is not fully available within the timeframe of network deployment, the vendors and public safety network operators will have the option to perform specific testing as determined by the Bureau.
- Security: The optional security features<sup>102</sup> as specified in 3GPP TS 33.401 must be supported as recommended by Section 6.3.3 of the NPSTC BBTF report. Additionally, the use of network layer VPN must be allowed on the deployed network.

48. Although not an initial requirement, the scheme by which the networks would adopt the use of PLMN ID will be considered by ERIC. ERIC will also consider the use of a common/single 3rd party clearing house as recommended by Section 6.3.1.4 of the NPSTC BBTF Report for the purpose of Internetwork authentication and connectivity. The Bureau, with ERIC's recommendation, would then select the clearing house.

49. *Governance and Coordination with the State.* We also find that it is critical that we ensure not only technical interoperability for these early deployments, but compatible governance as well. In this respect, the Bureau sought comment on whether we should mandate a particular geographic size for early deployments, and how we should address petitions from multiple parties seeking to deploy in the same or overlapping geographic areas.<sup>103</sup> The Bureau also sought comment on whether waiver recipients should be required to offer service to any public safety eligible within their deployed area.<sup>104</sup> New York City suggests that Petitioners with overlapping geographies be required to reconcile their plans to achieve seamless operations in overlapping areas, or to eliminate overlapping deployments.<sup>105</sup> The PSST supports

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>101</sup> PTCRB is a global organization created by mobile network operators to provide an independent evaluation process where GSM / UMTS type certification can take place. The technical evaluation is based on standards as well the needs of the operators, who determine the requirements for the type certification process. The PTCRB authorizes third party laboratories to conduct testing. *See* <u>http://www.ptcrb.com/</u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>102</sup> While these optional features are technologically required to be supported, the selection of security features for operation of the network will be determined by ERIC in future.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>103</sup> Waiver PN at 8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>104</sup> *See id.* 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>105</sup> New York City Comments at 7.

a requirement that Petitioners be required to offer service to any eligible public safety entity requesting service within the system's footprint.<sup>106</sup>

50. We conclude that waivers for early deployment should meet certain criteria for geographic scope of the proposed deployment. For several reasons, we believe that states provide the most appropriate geographic size for consideration of waiver relief. States offer a reasonable delineation, both geographically and politically, to ensure that deployments are undertaken with sufficient authority. planning and coordination among all state and local public safety agencies within the state.<sup>107</sup> States can also ensure that early deployments are developed to be consistent with overall plans for intra-state interoperability, and can, consistent with existing mechanisms concerning narrowband interoperability, serve as a single interface with the PSST and ERIC to minimize the complexity that would otherwise be inherent in coordinating numerous interactions on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. Further, we believe that state-level waiver deployments will facilitate equipment development and purchase, by ensuring that there is a critical mass of potential users even in the early deployment phase to encourage vendors to compete to provide reasonably priced equipment. The public safety community also has experience with interoperability planning at the state level. For example, under a Department of Homeland Securityadministered Public Safety Interoperable Communications ("PSIC") grant program, each state and territory has developed a statewide communications interoperability plan ("SCIP").<sup>108</sup> The established governance mechanisms of a state will also facilitate execution of spectrum leases, and coordination of deployments within states and with adjacent states. Finally, we note that state-level systems have the advantage of including a mix of populations, including both urban and rural areas. Thus, state-level governance mechanisms are more likely to ensure that rural areas are included as part of overall deployment plans.

51. We also recognize, however, that a number of Petitioners represent cities and counties, or groups thereof, within a state that have legitimate plans and the means to proceed with deployment.<sup>109</sup> While we believe state-level deployments offer significant advantages, we conclude that these Petitioners should also receive waiver relief, provided that they do so in coordination with state authorities. We believe coordination is critical for a number of reasons, primarily to ensure that there is an opportunity for state-level participation in the planning and deployment of networks within the state. Coordination will also facilitate seamless operation of adjacent networks and development of mutually agreed-upon protocols within the state. If a Petitioner or future deployment involves an area larger than a state or that crosses state lines, coordination would be required for each state involved.

52. In this respect, we require, prior to construction or deployment, that any non-state Petitioner submit evidence of coordination with the state to ERIC. Specifically, petitioners must certify

<sup>108</sup> See, e.g., Statewide Communications Interoperability Plans, at

http://www.dhs.gov/files/programs/gc 1225902750156.shtm (last visited May 3, 2010). Similarly, grants are administered at the state/territory level under the ENHANCE 911 Act by the NTIA. *See*, States and Territories Receive \$40 Million in Grants to Improve 911 Services, *available at* http://www.ntia.doc.gov/press/2009/E911grants 090929 html (last visited May 3, 2010).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>106</sup> PSST Comments at 18.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>107</sup> For these purposes, we would also treat a request by a Tribal government in the same manner as a request by a state.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>109</sup> Petitioners representing cities and counties, or groups thereof, include: City of Boston; City and County of San Francisco, City of Oakland, City of San Jose, CA; City of New York; City of San Antonio, TX (San Antonio UASI); City of Chesapeake, VA; City of Charlotte, NC; City of Seattle, WA; Adams County, CO Communications Center; City of Pembroke Pines, FL; Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System (LA-RICS); City of Mesa, AZ and the TOPAZ Regional Wireless Cooperative; and the Counties of Calumet, Outagamie and Winnebago, WI.

that they have provided notice to the appropriate state official, such as a state Chief Information Officer, or other appropriate officer or entity, to advise such officer or entity of the Petitioner's intent to deploy, including a brief description of the Petitioner's plans and Petitioner's affirmative commitment to work on an ongoing basis with the state, the Commission, and ERIC to ensure interoperability both technically and as a matter of governance. The petitioner must also provide evidence that the state official or entity has acknowledged receipt of the notice and has interposed no objection to the Petitioner's intended deployment. This can be accomplished by providing either the written consent of the state official or entity or written acknowledgement by the state official or entity that notice has been received without objection to the Petitioner's intended deployment, either of which may be evidenced by letter or other instrument from the state Chief Information Officer or other appropriate official or entity, or through any other official means permitted by the state. If, however, no consent or acknowledgement is forthcoming from the state 60 days after such contact is made, we will allow a Petitioner to nonetheless submit to ERIC a certification of its reasonable attempt to contact the state and the state's lack of response for the Bureau's consideration. Finally, if the state objects for any reason to the Petitioner's proposed deployment, the Petitioner may refer the matter to the Bureau for further resolution consistent with this Order, taking the views of both parties into account.

53. With respect to potential overlap of Petitioners' proposed areas of operation, we note that this issue appears primarily to affect the petitions filed by New York City and the State of New York. In its comments, the State of New York indicates that:

[w]hile the State's petition currently overlaps with New York City's petition in terms of spectrum access, the State's network implementation strategy recognizes build autonomy for regional initiatives, including New York City. In other words, the State of New York fully supports New York City's desire to build, maintain, and operate their own 700 MHz wireless broadband network for public safety, assuming compliance with LTE technological requirements are instituted. Given both New York State and New York City are in agreement on this build approach, a resolution of the waiver overlap should be straightforward.<sup>110</sup>

New York City states that the Commission "should require entities applying for waivers covering the same geography to present a plan detailing a mechanism to achieve seamless network operation transparent to the user, in overlap areas. Alternative, petitioners may choose to amend their petitions to eliminate any overlap areas."<sup>111</sup> In light of the comments of both parties, we find sufficient assurance that both waivers may be granted, and both networks may proceed. We also find the comments of the State of New York represent sufficient affirmative consent to allow New York City to proceed, and expect, based on New York City's comments, that the City will engage with the State to develop, under the auspices of ERIC, the suggested plan for achieving seamless network operations that are transparent to the user.

54. Finally, we agree with the PSST that all Petitioners must offer service or access to all eligible public safety entities within their proposed geographic service area.<sup>112</sup> This will facilitate inclusiveness and collaboration, and will further the Commission's interoperability goals by allowing all those eligible to utilize a common, compatible network.

55. *Submission of Interoperability Plans to ERIC.* Recognizing that in addition to the mandatory use of LTE 3GPP Release 8 and the other technical specifications prescribed in this Order, there are technical and governance specifications that must be consistent in order to ensure

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>110</sup> New York State Comments at 4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>111</sup> New York City Comments at 7.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>112</sup> See PSST Comments at 17.

interoperability and roaming among these early deployments, and in light of the generalized nature of the information supplied in the waiver petitions, we find it is also appropriate to require the petitioners to work with ERIC prior to deployment and operation to develop more detailed network interoperability plans. Accordingly, as a condition of waiver, we require that Petitioners submit to ERIC, during a specific filing window, their detailed plans to achieve interoperability.<sup>113</sup> Such showings must be properly detailed and reflective of the complex nature of 4G wireless broadband networks. For example, the showings may include detailed deployment and technical data and information that Petitioners obtain from industry partners. To the extent such information is confidential or proprietary, Petitioners may submit this information under request for confidential treatment.<sup>114</sup> ERIC will thereafter recommend for Bureau approval on delegated authority, the initial set of technical requirements that will be applicable to those Petitioners submitting plans. Once the Bureau adopts these technical requirements, Petitioners will then be permitted to commence operations upon certification to ERIC that they will meet these technical requirements.

56. Further, the ongoing 3GPP standards development process will continue during this time. Our approach strikes a balance by defining the initial parameters applicable to early, waiver-based deployments, while allowing enough flexibility to enable deployments to proceed in a manner consistent with further evolution of technical requirements. In this respect, we find it appropriate to require Petitioners' technical filings with ERIC to occur within a set window of time. This window will open upon OMB approval of the information collection we are specifying for Petitioners, and close 30 days thereafter. We direct PSHSB to issue a Public Notice to this effect upon OMB approval. ERIC will consider only those technical interoperability showings that are timely submitted during this filing window.

57. Recognizing that some parties have suggested the need for certainty and expediency in terms of securing deployment rights in order to either seek public funding or justify investment of taxpayer resources,<sup>115</sup> we also find it appropriate to assure prompt action on the Commission's part as well. In this respect, we require the Bureau, in consultation with ERIC, to act on the interoperability showing submissions within 60 days of the close of the filing window.

58. The additional technical interoperability showing we require is consistent with the lack of any detailed information in the record to date, the complex and novel nature of LTE technology, and the importance of ensuring deployments will be interoperable. The specific filing window we impose is similarly important in order to provide for a coordinated and streamlined administrative process for the Bureau to issue a timely and well-informed set of initial technical requirements governing early deployments. We also are cognizant that we are permitting Petitioners to move forward in an evolving technical and regulatory environment that will require rapid adaptation. Accordingly, while there are significant benefits of allowing Petitioners to move forward, the evolving nature of 3GPP deployments and standards and the paramount importance of the Commission's overall goals also require us, and Petitioners, to take a cautious and measured approach.

59. *PSCR/DC Demonstration Network.* We also recognize that as these early deployments move forward, the Commission will continue the rulemaking process, including additional considerations of rules governing technical interoperability among public safety networks and between public safety networks and commercial deployments, either through partnerships or in roaming relationships. We expect these early waiver-based efforts to provide us with valuable insight into this process.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>113</sup> The Bureau shall issue an informational Public Notice providing guidance on this submission.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>114</sup> See 47 C.F.R. § 0.459.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>115</sup> See, e.g., New Mexico Comments at 3; LeGrande Technical and Social Services Comments at 3; New York State Comments at 1.

60. In this regard, the recently announced PSCR/DC Demonstration Network will provide an open platform for development and testing of public safety 700 MHz LTE broadband equipment.<sup>116</sup> This is a key development because currently there are no other government or independent laboratory facilities in the United States to test and demonstrate the public safety-specific LTE implementation requirements. We believe public safety and vendor participation in the Demonstration Network will contribute significantly to the development of a 700 MHz broadband equipment "ecosystem" that includes LTE equipment suitable for use by public safety. Particularly in the early deployment stage, it will be important to verify that new broadband equipment being developed to support the network meets public safety's use expectations, will work in a multivendor environment, and allows for roaming across multiple networks, including commercial as well as public safety systems, support the inclusion of public safety requirements in the 3GPP standards process, and demonstrate broadband air-interface and core network capabilities.

61. For this reason, as a condition of the waiver relief granted by this Order, we require the Petitioners and other public safety entities seeking early deployment waivers to participate in the Demonstration Network. As part of this participation, waiver recipients must certify that their vendors are participating actively in the Demonstration Network through submission of their equipment to be evaluated under the test plan established by NIST.<sup>117</sup> We will consider showings of such vendor participation favorably in evaluation of the interoperability showings submitted by waiver recipients.

#### 4. Network Integration

62. While the need for prompt access to this spectrum to begin deployment motivates our action here, it does not affect the overarching goal of ensuring a nationwide interoperable public safety broadband network is available to all public safety personnel. In this respect, and as recognized by the Petitioners themselves,<sup>118</sup> any deployment or other expenditures made by the requesting jurisdictions pursuant to this Order is undertaken at their own risk and with the understanding that any deployments will be subject to the outcome of the larger proceeding, including possible integration into a nationwide network and compliance with future technical requirements adopted by ERIC or the Commission.<sup>119</sup> This may include, for example, interoperability requirements for voice applications. Our action on these waiver petitions, therefore, is subject to and without prejudice to our resolution of any of these issues in the broader rulemaking.

## 5. Milestones and Reporting

63. In the *Waiver PN*, the Bureau sought comment on the best method to enforce any waiver conditions. Some commenters supported the imposition of milestones to ensure that Petitioners pursue deployment diligently, perhaps in lieu of requiring evidence of financing.<sup>120</sup> We find that, in light of the conditions imposed herein, particularly the necessary interaction with ERIC to ensure interoperability and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>116</sup> See Press Release, Nat'l Inst. of Standards and Tech., Demonstration Network Planned for Public Safety 700 MHz Broadband (Dec. 15, 2009), *available at* http://www.nist.gov/eeel/oles/network\_121509.cfm (last visited Apr. 26, 2010).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>117</sup> See id.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>118</sup> See, e.g., Charlotte Petition at 6-7; New York State Petition at 2; San Antonio Petition at 5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>119</sup> In this respect, we decline New Mexico's invitation to require, as part of this Order, that Petitioner be guaranteed compensation by the D Block auction winner. New Mexico Comments at 5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>120</sup> NPSTC Comments at 9; Charlotte Reply Comments at 3; San Francisco Comments at 5-6 (supporting waiver of build out requirements in favor of deployment "within a reasonable time" with the requirement to provide "milestone" updates).

technical compatibility, it is in the public interest to require quarterly reporting by Petitioners addressing progress made pursuant to this Order.

64. While we find it unnecessary at this time to impose particular deadlines or milestones in light of the novel nature of these deployments and the ongoing standards and equipment development for LTE, we emphasize that diligent pursuit of deployment is expected. In this respect, we require Petitioners to file, in consultation with the PSST, 30 days after approval by OMB and quarterly thereafter, status reports with the Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau addressing the Petitioners' progress in 3 areas: (1) planning; (2) funding; and (3) deployment. As with the interoperability showings detailed above, to the extent such information is confidential or proprietary, Petitioners may submit this information under request for confidential treatment.<sup>121</sup> We also require the Bureau to issue a Public Notice upon OMB approval, including any additional requirements addressing filing mechanisms for the submissions required by this Order. Substantive information in each category should include the following:

- Planning
  - o Expected timing for development and issuance of any RFI/RFP
- Funding
  - Status of efforts to obtain funding for planning and/or deployment, including budgeting, assessments, grants or other means
- Deployment
  - Status of equipment development and purchase, including number of devices and users
  - Site development, including use of existing towers
  - Deployments and upgrades (commencement and completion), including site information and location
  - Applications in development or in use

## 6. Permitted Spectrum Bands

65. We decline at this time to allow operations outside of the public safety broadband spectrum. Furthermore, as we deny the Petition of Flow Mobile on eligibility grounds, no other party has requested permission to use spectrum for purposes of these Petitions other than the public safety broadband spectrum licensed to the PSST.

#### D. Other Issues

66. We decline to act on other issues raised in the waiver petitions and comments, as they are not essential to our decision here.

67. *D Block.* We decline to address Petitioners' and commenters' position that the D Block should be reallocated for public safety use.<sup>122</sup> Under Section 337 of the Act, the Commission is bound by Congress' directive that the D Block is allocated for commercial use for licensing through competitive bidding. Barring any alternate directive from Congress, we have no authority to consider reallocation in the context of these Petitions. Moreover, although several Petitioners advocate reallocation, they also

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>121</sup> See supra note 114.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>122</sup> See, e.g., APCO Comments at 12-13.

generally only request authority to operate on the spectrum currently licensed to the PSST.<sup>123</sup> We note that the NBP recommends certain obligations be considered for the D Block with respect to supporting a nationwide wireless interoperable public safety network, and that additional proceedings addressing the D Block are anticipated later this year.<sup>124</sup>

68. *Deployment without Waiver*. Pinellas County urges the Commission to modify its rules to allow deployment within the PSBL spectrum without a waiver.<sup>125</sup> We find that this is not the appropriate venue to consider this request. Rather, this issue is already presented in the ongoing proceeding, and consideration of the instant waivers is not the appropriate procedural vehicle to consider rule changes. However, we expect that the Bureau will be able to act on future waiver requests quickly and consistent with our decision here, after issuance of an appropriate Public Notice seeking comment when a new waiver is received.

69. 800 MHz Rebanding. Sprint Nextel notes that several of the Petitioners are have not yet completed retuning their 800 MHz narrowband voice communications systems, and urges the Commission to delay action on the subject Petitions until that process is completed in order to avoid diverting Petitioners' attention.<sup>126</sup> We decline to do so. Although rebanding in the 800 MHz band has taken longer than originally anticipated, rebanding has made substantial progress and the Commission has sufficient mechanisms to deal with unwarranted delays. We do not believe that taking action on the current Petitions will "distract" Petitioners from their other Commission obligations, nor does Sprint Nextel offer any proof to the contrary beyond a speculative concern that some Petitioners may not have sufficient resources to manage both rebanding at 800 MHz and deployment pursuant to a waiver at 700 MHz.

70. Satellite handsets. Although the Waiver PN did not specifically seek comment on the Commission's requirements for availability of satellite-capable devices, several commenters raised this issue. Commenters including the MSS/ATC Coalition and the Satellite Industry Association argue that Petitioners should be required to obtain and deploy dual-mode satellite-terrestrial devices when such devices become available.<sup>127</sup> They argue that if Petitioners are allowed to deploy prior to the auction of the D Block, then no party has any responsibility for development and deployment of dual mode devices. They further assert that obligating Petitioners to purchase these devices, however, will enhance the likelihood that manufacturers will make them available.<sup>128</sup> The PSST supports a requirement for Petitioners to comply with the same satellite capability requirements that are adopted for the nationwide network.<sup>129</sup>

71. We decline to require Petitioners, as part of their deployment under this Order, to purchase and deploy such equipment. The Commission's original Order and questions in the ongoing proceeding have not contemplated mandatory purchase and use of such dual mode equipment by public safety localities. Further, while we agree that such equipment can be highly valuable, we believe it is premature to consider this issue until the LTE equipment market develops. We further note, however, that the issue of the appropriate mechanism to ensure the availability of dual mode devices is open in the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>123</sup> See, e.g., Bay Area Petition at 1; Hawaii Petition at 7; LA-RICS Joint Power Authority Petition at 1; New York State Petition at 7.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>124</sup> See National Broadband Plan at 315-16.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>125</sup> Pinellas County Comments at 2.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>126</sup> Sprint Nextel Comments at fn. 4; Sprint Nextel Reply Comments at 18-19.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>127</sup> MSS/ATC Comments at 3; SIA Comments at 3-4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>128</sup> *Id*.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>129</sup> PSST Reply Comments at 10.

larger docket, and we are conditioning our waiver here on compliance with the Commission's later determinations.

#### E. Narrowband Relocation

72. We recognize that in some instances, there may be existing 700 MHz narrowband operations outside of the consolidated narrowband channels in a geographic area in which a waiver has been requested or in which a public safety entity may later seek to deploy pursuant to this Order. We agree with the PSST and US Cellular, that the most appropriate resolution of this overlapping use, in light of the ongoing nature of this proceeding, is to require each Petitioner to relocate, at its own expense, any narrowband operations in its intended area of operation from the public safety broadband spectrum to the appropriate public safety narrowband spectrum.<sup>130</sup> Alternatively, Petitioners may protect incumbent narrowband operations, either through appropriate engineering measures or geographic exclusion of the narrowband system's footprint. If a Petitioner obtain the consent of the incumbent as to its proposed method of protection. Petitioners must also account for narrowband operations in adjacent regions that occur outside of the consolidated narrowband channels, and take all measures necessary to protect such operations from interference from broadband deployments.

73. We decline to address more generally at this time the costs for such relocation and any potential reimbursement. As noted elsewhere herein, the relief we grant now is fully subject to the outcome of the pending rulemaking, and is undertaken at Petitioner's own risk. While the Commission had earlier held that the winner(s) of the D Block should be responsible for payment of relocation expenses for certified systems deployed prior to August 30, 2007, we defer our decision on reimbursement of any expenses to the larger rulemaking. To the extent, however, that the Commission ultimately provides a mechanism for funding of relocation expenses for public safety narrowband operations, we will also consider at that time the possible inclusion of reimbursement for permitted relocation expenses incurred by an entity undertaking early build out pursuant to this Order.

#### F. Flow Mobile

74. The *Waiver PN* sought specific comment on the petitions submitted by North Dakota and New EA d/b/a Flow Mobile.<sup>131</sup> The Bureau sought comment on whether Flow Mobile was eligible under Section 337 to seek such a waiver, or whether North Dakota could seek such a waiver on its behalf. The Bureau also sought comment on whether the proposed services were permissible under Section 337, Flow Mobile's proposed use of public safety narrowband spectrum for broadband purposes, and whether a "4-G like" network could meet the Commission's interoperability goals.

75. As an initial matter, we note that North Dakota has withdrawn both its initial request and its amended Petition.<sup>132</sup> Accordingly, any questions or issues related to the North Dakota petitions have been rendered moot.

76. With respect to Flow Mobile's petition, parties were largely opposed to Flow Mobile's proposals. APCO opposes Flow Mobile's petition on eligibility and technical grounds, stating that the proposed commercial uses are not permitted under current law.<sup>133</sup> The PSST similarly argues that the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>130</sup> PSST Comments at 14-15; US Cellular Comments at 5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>131</sup> Waiver PN at 9.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>132</sup> See Letter from David A. Sprynczynatyk, Major General, North Dakota National Guard, to Jamie Barnett, Chief, Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau (Mar. 25, 2010) (withdrawing North Dakota's amended Petition); see *also* Letter from David A. Sprynczynatyk, Major General, North Dakota National Guard, to Jamie Barnett, Chief, Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau (Aug. 28, 2009) (withdrawing North Dakota's initial request).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>133</sup> APCO Comments at 13-14.

"commercial and residential services" Flow Mobile proposes do not qualify as "public safety services" under Section 337. In addition, they argue that Flow Mobile does not meet Section 337's requirement that public safety services be provided by "State or local government entities" or "by nongovernmental organizations that are authorized by a governmental entity whose primary mission is the provision of such services."<sup>134</sup>

77. Flow Mobile argues that it is working closely with the North Dakota, it can otherwise satisfy the criteria of Section 337, and that it is eligible to use public safety spectrum for public safety purposes.<sup>135</sup> In this respect, Flow Mobile argues that it is already licensed 700 MHz spectrum for commercial purposes, and that it can ensure that no commercial services will be offered with the public safety spectrum to which it seeks access.<sup>136</sup>

78. *Discussion.* We deny Flow Mobile's petition. We find that Flow Mobile, a commercial entity, is not statutorily eligible to operate on the subject spectrum, as it does not meet all three prongs of the definition of "public safety services" under Section 337(f)(1) of the Act, which requires that such services: (1) are services "the sole or principal purpose of which is to protect the safety of life, health or property;" (2) are provided by a State or local government, or a nongovernmental organization that is authorized by a governmental entity whose primary mission is the provision of such service; and (3) are "not made commercially available to the public by the provider."<sup>137</sup>

79. Rather, as evidenced by its petition, Flow Mobile proposes a "dual use" network that will provide "emergency communications service for first responders and [provide] commercial and residential services."<sup>138</sup> In this respect, Flow Mobile is a commercial entity, seeking to provide commercial services to public safety entities, essentially as enterprise consumers without the designation of the state as an eligible nongovernmental organization. Offering commercial services to public safety entities, even services tailored to public safety needs, does not render a company eligible under Section 337 as an entity providing services "sole or principle purpose of which is the safety of life, health, or property."<sup>139</sup> To find otherwise would vitiate Section 337 as well as the Commission's public safety eligibility requirements, in that any commercial entity that has public safety customers could then be deemed eligible to directly hold a public safety license. This was clearly not the intent of Congress, nor is it a valid reading of our rules implementing these eligibility restrictions.

80. With respect to the second prong of Section 337, Flow Mobile's argument that it "could" be designated by the state as a non-governmental entity to provide such services does not provide a basis for finding that is meets this requirement. There is no evidence that North Dakota *has* made this designation. The mere "potential" for such designation is not sufficient. Moreover, as indicated earlier, both the initial petition and the amended petition filed by North Dakota have been withdrawn, so is no colorable argument in the record that Flow Mobile's proposal is endorsed by the State. Accordingly, we need not address this argument.

81. Finally, Flow Mobile fails to meet the third prong of Section 337's requirements. This prong requires that public safety services must "not [be] made commercially available to the public by the provider." Again, based on Flow Mobile's pleadings, it appears that it is seeking to provide "enterprise customer" services to public safety. They also indicate that they intend to provide service to commercial

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>134</sup> PSST Comments at 8; *see also*, NDRTC Comments at 12.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>135</sup> Flow Mobile Comments at 7-8.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>136</sup> Id.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>137</sup> See 47 U.S.C. § 337(f)(1).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>138</sup> Flow Mobile Petition at 5.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>139</sup> See 47 U.S.C. § 337(f)(1)(A).; see also NTCA Comments at 3-4.

and residential consumers as a way to bridge the gap in the provision of broadband services in the state.<sup>140</sup> While both goals are very laudable, these are clearly services that will be offered on a commercial basis.

82. Because we deny Flow Mobile's request on eligibility grounds, we also need not address its request to operate on the public safety narrowband spectrum, it's proposed "4-G like" technology, or the potential interference and interoperability objections raised by commenters.<sup>141</sup> We also note, however, that in light of our determination to require the use of LTE for these deployments, Flow Mobile's proposed "4-G like" technologies do not appear to conform to this requirement. Flow Mobile's Petition, therefore, is denied.

#### IV. PROCEDURAL MATTERS

83. *Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995.* This document contains new or modified information collection requirements subject to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (PRA), Public Law 104-13. It will be submitted to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for review under Section 3507(d) of the PRA. OMB, the general public, and other Federal agencies are invited to comment on the new or modified information collection requirements contained in this proceeding.

#### V. ORDERING CLAUSES

84. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that pursuant to sections 1, 4(i), 301, 303, 332 and 337of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. §§ 151, 154(i), 301, 303, 332 and 337, and Section 1.925 of the Commission's rules, 47 C.F.R. § 1.925, THIS ORDER in PS Docket No. 06-229 is ADOPTED.

85. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Waiver Requests filed by those parties listed in Appendix B, are GRANTED WITH CONDITIONS, as specified herein.

86. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Waiver Request filed by New EA d/b/a Flow Mobile, is DENIED, as specified herein.

87. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any new or modified information collection requirements SHALL BE EFFECTIVE upon approval by the Office of Management and Budget, and the Bureau SHALL ISSUE a Public Notice announcing such approval.

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

Marlene H. Dortch Secretary

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>140</sup> Flow Mobile Petition at 3-4.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>141</sup> See, e.g., North Dakota Rural Telecom Coalition Comments at 20-21.

#### APPENDIX A

## Waivers Conditionally Granted

Petitioner	Date Filed
City of Boston	12/11/08; amended 5/28/09
City and County of San Francisco, City of Oakland,	3/24/09; amended 5/27/09
City of San Jose, CA	
State of New Jersey	4/3/09
City of New York	6/8/09
City of San Antonio, TX, on behalf of the San	7/10/09
Antonio Urban Area Security Initiative Region	
City of Chesapeake, VA	7/8/09
State of New Mexico	7/10/09
City of Charlotte, NC	8/4/09
State of New York	6/30/09
District of Columbia	6/26/09
County of Maui, County of Hawaii, County of	8/19/09
Kauai, City and County of Honolulu, and the State	
of Hawaii	
City of Seattle, WA	1/15/10
Adams County, CO Communications Center	12/10/09
City of Pembroke Pines, FL	11/18/09
Los Angeles Regional Interoperable	11/16/09
Communications System (LA-RICS)	
Iowa Statewide Interop. Comms. System Bd.	10/15/09
Calumet, Outagamie and Winnebago Counties, WI	3/10/10
Mississippi Wireless Communications Commission	3/23/10
City of Mesa, AZ and the TOPAZ Regional	4/14/10
Wireless Cooperative	
State of Oregon	4/30/10
State of Alabama	5/10/10

#### **APPENDIX B**

#### **Standard Lease**

#### LONG TERM DE FACTO TRANSFER SPECTRUM LEASE AGREEMENT

This Long Term *De Facto* Spectrum Lease Agreement ("Lease" or "Agreement") is entered into by the Public Safety Spectrum Trust Corporation ("PSST" or "Lessor"), the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") licensee of the public safety broadband spectrum in the 700 MHz Band (Call Sign WQHW226) (the "Leased Spectrum"), and [state or locality] ("Lessee") (each a "Party," and, collectively, "the Parties"). This Lease is subject to the FCC's May 12, 2010 Order, FCC 10-79 ("FCC Order"). Further, this Lease is a long term *de facto* transfer spectrum lease pursuant to Section 1.9030 of the FCC's rules, 47 C.F.R. § 1.9030, subject to all applicable FCC rules, regulations and policies. [If Lessee is not a state, Lessee shall comply with the requirements and procedures of the FCC Order concerning notification and coordination with the relevant state authority.]

#### 1. Agreement.

a. Conditioned on first obtaining the consent of the Chief of the Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau of the FCC (the "Bureau") to the creation of this Lease , Lessor hereby grants to Lessee the exclusive right to use the Leased Spectrum within Lessee's jurisdiction during the term of this Agreement and in accordance with the provisions hereof. It is the intent of the Parties that this Agreement create a long term *de facto* transfer spectrum leasing arrangement within the meaning (and subject to the requirements) of 47 C.F.R. Section 1.9030.

b. The PSST retains all rights and obligations under its FCC license and as a spectrum lessor, as specified in the Communications Laws (as defined in section 5 of this Agreement), and as subject to the terms of this Agreement. Lessee is subject to the rights and obligations under this Agreement and the Communications Laws. Consistent with FCC rules governing long term *de facto* transfer spectrum leases, Lessee is primarily responsible for complying with the FCC Order and the Communications Laws, including all FCC filing requirements related to the Leased Spectrum, and Lessor retains de jure control of its spectrum license.

c. Lessee shall be responsible to relocate, at its own expense, the operations of any incumbent 700 MHz narrowband licensee in the Lessee's area of operation, from the Leased Spectrum to the appropriate public safety narrowband spectrum. Alternatively, Lessee agrees to protect such incumbent narrowband operations, either through appropriate engineering measures or geographic exclusion of the narrowband system's footprint, and to obtain the consent of the incumbent as to its proposed method of protection. Lessee shall also account for narrowband operations in adjacent regions that occur outside of the consolidated narrowband channels, and take all measures necessary to protect such operations from interference.

d. Lessee's network shall be fully interoperable with any other regional public safety deployments permitted by a waiver granted by the FCC pursuant to the FCC Order, and with any future nationwide or regional public safety broadband networks, including adherence to any technical requirements adopted by the FCC's Emergency Response Interoperability Center ("ERIC"), the Bureau, or the FCC, and shall be consistent with other nationally coordinated technical standards and operating requirements that the ERIC, Bureau, or FCC may impose from time to time.

i. Lessee must make its network available to all public safety entities eligible under Section 337 of the Communications Act within its jurisdiction.

ii. Lessee must adhere to all other technical conditions specified in the FCC Order or FCC rule or imposed by ERIC, the Bureau or the FCC.

iii. Lessor may not require a bond, letter of credit or other instrument by way of security in connection with the execution of this Agreement for the use of the spectrum; Lessee's sole consideration for use of the Leased Spectrum will be its remittance of the Administrative Fee to the Lessor and compliance with the terms of this Agreement, and any and all FCC, Bureau and ERIC requirements. The Administrative Fee is the fee to be remitted by Lessee to Lessor, as defined and ultimately approved by the Chief of the Bureau, in accordance with the procedures outlined in the FCC Order.

iv. Lessor shall maintain *de jure* control over its spectrum license, in accordance with FCC rules.

v. Lessor shall submit the monthly reports as required by the FCC Order providing an accounting of the Administrative Fee remitted by Lessee, based upon generally accepted accounting procedures.

vi. Lessor shall timely comply with any audit as may be requested at the discretion of the Chief of the Bureau with respect to its collection and expenditure of the Administrative Fee.

e. Lessee shall be responsible for: (a) obtaining, paying for, operating and maintaining all equipment necessary to build out its network; (b) acquiring all necessary permits, authorizations or consents required for construction and operation of the network; (c) paying any and all other costs and expenses incident to use of the spectrum; and (d) paying the Administration Fee to the PSST. The Lessee has no other financial obligation to the PSST under this Agreement.

f. Lessee agrees to file, in consultation with the PSST, the quarterly status reports required under the FCC Order on a timely basis. The Lessor and the Lessee jointly and severally agree to timely submit any other filings or information as the FCC, the Bureau, or ERIC may require.

g. The PSST may rely upon Lessee's operations in demonstrating compliance with any construction or substantial service requirements the FCC may adopt in the future.

h. The Parties shall maintain such records as may be necessary to comply with FCC reporting requirements and FCC rules, including the specific FCC obligations pertinent to long term *de facto* transfer spectrum leases, lessors and lessees.

#### 2. Scope of Spectrum Usage Rights.

a. Lessor grants to Lessee the maximum usage rights that Lessor is capable of granting as set forth in the Agreement, including, without limitation, use and operation on the Leased Spectrum in the geographic area of operation within its jurisdiction as permitted under FCC rules and ERIC requirements.

b. The geographic area of operation within the Lessee's jurisdiction shall be [delineate geographic jurisdictional boundaries].

#### 3. Term and Renewal.

a. The Agreement shall have an initial term of two years, commencing on the Effective Date. The Parties have an expectation of renewal, for additional two-year terms as long as the PSST holds the nationwide

license, including any renewals or extensions of the PSST's current license term, except as otherwise agreed to by the Parties or required by the FCC.

#### 4. Termination.

a. Lessee may terminate this Agreement at the Lessee's option, upon 30-days written notice to the PSST and the Bureau. Lessee agrees to remit any remaining or prorated Administration Fee to the PSST no later than 30 days following termination.

b. While Lessee remains in compliance with the Agreement and the Communications Laws (as defined by section 5 of this Agreement), PSST may not terminate the Agreement or otherwise curtail Lessee's use of the spectrum for any reason.

#### 5. Compliance with FCC Rules, Other Applicable Law and Requirements of This Agreement.

a. The Parties agree to comply with all of the rules, regulations, policies, decisions, and Orders of the FCC, the Bureau, and the ERIC, both currently and as may be adopted in the future, as well as any other applicable laws, including the Communications Act of 1934, 47 U.S.C. Section 151 et seq. (the "Communications Act") (collectively, the Communications Laws).

b. The PSST shall have the right to make scheduled inspections upon reasonable notice to the Lessee to ensure compliance with the Agreement.

c. Each Party must notify the other Party and the Chief of the Bureau within five (5) business days if the Party becomes or expects to become non-compliant with the Communications Laws.

d. If Lessee fails to comply with any of the Communications Laws, this Agreement may be terminated by the FCC, the Bureau, or by the Lessor, but by the Lessor only with the consent of the FCC or the Chief of the Bureau, and only then if such failure of compliance by Lessee is of such a nature that (i) Lessee is causing harmful interference to other spectrum operations protected by FCC Rules, or (ii) if such failure of compliance had been committed by the Lessor in respect of its license, would be reasonably expected to result in the revocation, cancellation or termination of its license by the FCC (either (i) or (ii) constituting a Material Breach).

e. In the event the PSST believes that Lessee has committed a Material Breach, the PSST shall provide written notice to the Chief of the Bureau and the Lessee no later than five (5) days after discovering the Material Breach. The PSST may only terminate this Agreement with the consent of the Bureau or the FCC.

f. In the event the PSST believes that Lessee has committed a non-Material Breach, the PSST shall provide written notice of noncompliance to the Lessee and the Bureau within thirty (30) days after discovering such breach. The Lessee shall have 30 days to cure the breach. If Lessee has failed to cure the breach within 30 days, the PSST shall provide written notice of failure to cure to the Chief of the Bureau. The Chief of the Bureau will then render a decision or finding, which may include an order for the Lessee to cure or such other remedy as the Chief of the Bureau, in his or her discretion, considers reasonable.

#### 7. Representations and Warranties.

Each of the Lessor and the Lessee severally represents and warrants to the other:

a. that each of them has the requisite corporate power and authority and has taken all corporate action necessary in order to execute and deliver this Agreement.

b. that each of them is a corporation or other entity duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its respective jurisdiction of incorporation or organization.

c. that the execution and delivery of this Agreement by each of them does not and will not, and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not, with respect to each of the Parties, violate or conflict with any contract or other instrument to which it or he is a party or by which it or he is bound or conflict with any law, regulation, ordinance, judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree or any other requirement of any court or governmental or regulatory body of any jurisdiction.

d. that the facts stated herein to the extent that they are within such Party's knowledge, are true, complete and accurate.

#### 8. Indemnity.

a. The Lessor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Lessee from, against, for, and in respect of any and all losses asserted against, imposed upon, or incurred by such the Lessee by reason of, resulting from, based upon, or arising out of:

i. the breach of any representation or warranty of the Lessor contained in this Agreement; and

ii. the breach of any covenant or agreement of the Lessor contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement.

b. The Lessee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Lessor from, against, for, and in respect of any and all losses asserted against, imposed upon, or incurred by the Lessor by reason of, resulting from, based upon, or arising out of:

- i. the breach of any representation or warranty of the Lessee contained in this Agreement; and
- ii. the breach of any covenant or agreement of the Lessee contained in or made pursuant to this Agreement.

#### 9. Miscellaneous.

a. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the Lessor and Lessee. This Agreement may not be assigned without the express written consent of both the Chief of the Bureau and the other Party. Such consent will be given only upon the proposed assignee demonstrating that it will be able to meet all applicable FCC requirements and the terms of this Agreement.

b. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the District of Columbia.

c. Disputes. The Parties have a duty and obligation to make all reasonable efforts to resolve any disputes that arise under this Agreement. If the Parties are unable to reach a settlement on their own, they agree to submit their dispute to the FCC, which will have sole authority to arbitrate or judge any disputes that would then be binding upon the Parties..

d. Specific Performance. The Parties shall be entitled to specific performance in the event that either Party fails to perform its obligations hereunder.

e. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one agreement. Facsimile signatures shall be deemed original signatures.

f. Amendments. This Agreement shall not be amended, altered or modified except in accordance with the limitations and procedures specified in the FCC Order.

10. Effective Date. The Parties shall submit for approval an executed copy of this Agreement to the Chief of the Bureau. The Effective Date of this Agreement is the date that the Chief of the Bureau consents to the creation of this Agreement (as specified in section 1).

11. Notices

Public Safety Spectrum Trust Corporation Chairman of the Board [Address] [phone] [fax] [email address]

Lessee:

[Name of contact person] [Name of agency] [Address] [phone] [fax] [email address]

Bureau:

Federal Communications Commission Public Safety and Homeland Security Bureau 445 12<sup>th</sup> St. SW Washington, DC 20554 (202) 418-1300 (202) 418-2817 [email address]

In WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date approval is provided by the Chief of the Bureau.

#### PUBLIC SAFETY SPECTRUM TRUST CORPORATION

By: Name: Title: Dated:

LESSEE

By: Name: Title: Dated:

## BTOP Comprehensive Community Infrastructure Pro Forma Financial Projections

Please complete the Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flows, and NPV-IRR Table worksheets. Key assumptions used to formulate these financial projections should be listed in the Key Assumptions worksheet. Please note that these are **project-specific** projections, in contrast to the historical financial information which is provided at the organizational level.

## <u>Please refer to the Comprehensive Community Infrastructure Grant Guidance for</u> <u>detailed instructions on the completing this attachment.</u>

Applicants are required to provide this attachment as an Excel file, and not to convert it to a PDF when submitting a copy of their application on an appropriate electronic medium, such as a DVD, CD-ROM, or flash drive. Applicants may make adjustments to the format of the templates as necessary to provide the most effective presentation of the data for their specific project, but should not remove major headings (*e.g.* Revenues and Expenses on the Income Statement) or provide less detailed information than would be required to complete the provided templates.

## **Income Statement**

Interest Expense       \$       -       \$       >       >									Forecas	st Pe	eriod								
Broadband Offerings         Image: Constraint of the			Year 1		Year 2		Year 3		Year 4		Year 5		Year 6		Year 7		Year 8	$\square$	Total
Unclease Data         5         <	Revenues																		
Unclease Data         5         <	Broadband Offerings																		
Read Data         \$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	
Coloration         S		<u> </u>			-	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	-		-				-				-
Other (Lit specific services)         \$	Dark Fiber	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Other Network Driven Revenues         S				\$	-			\$		\$				\$	-	\$		\$	-
Uter         Services         S <th< td=""><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td></th<>		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$			-
Voice Services (local/all/integritsmon)         S		<b>*</b>		<b>(</b>		_		_						<u>_</u>					
Other (iii specific services)         S														<del>0</del>					
Universal Service Fund         S		_		-				—÷						\$					
Installation Revenues         \$				<u> </u>	-	<u> </u>		<u> </u>						\$					
ETOP Grant Revenues         \$ 34.315,000         \$ 77,200,000         \$ 60,053,000         \$ 14,844,000         \$ 15,433,000         \$ 16,372,000         \$ 16,862,000         \$ 2,44,152,000           Expenditures (Expenses)         Network & Access Equipment         \$ 15,157,000         \$ 2,652,000         \$ 15,433,000         \$ 16,372,000         \$ 16,862,000         \$ 2,64,152,000           Expenditures (Expenses)         Network & Access Equipment         \$ 15,157,000         \$ 2,652,000         \$ 5         \$ 1         \$ 1         \$ 16,167,000         \$ 2,622,000         \$ 1         \$ 1         \$ 10,100         \$ 10,100         \$ 2,622,000         \$ 1         \$ 1         \$ 10,100         \$ 1,62,000         \$ 1,62,000         \$ 1         \$ 10,100         \$ 1,62,000         \$ 1,62,000         \$ 1         \$ 10,100         \$ 1,62,000         \$ 1,63,000					-	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	-					\$					
Total Revenues         \$ 34.315.000         \$ 80.206.000         \$ 70.084.000         \$ 15.433.000         \$ 15.886.000         \$ 16.372.000         \$ 16.820.00         \$ 224.152.000           Expenditures (Expenses)         Image: Construct and the second and the s		\$	-	<b></b>					14,984,000	\$	15,433,000	\$	15,896,000	\$	16,372,000	\$		<b>_</b>	
Expenditures (Expense)         Image: constraint of the state of	BTOP Grant Revenues	\$	34,315,000	\$	77,209,000	\$	60,053,000	\$		\$		\$		\$	-	\$		\$	171,577,000
Expenditures (Expense)         Image: constraint of the state of		•				•							15 000 000	•		_	10.000.000	L	
Network & Access Equipment         15,157,000         S         26,252,000         S <td>Total Revenues</td> <td>\$</td> <td>34,315,000</td> <td>\$</td> <td>80,206,000</td> <td>\$</td> <td>70,084,000</td> <td>\$</td> <td>14,984,000</td> <td>\$</td> <td>15,433,000</td> <td>\$</td> <td>15,896,000</td> <td>\$</td> <td>16,372,000</td> <td><u>\$</u></td> <td>16,862,000</td> <td>\$</td> <td>264,152,000</td>	Total Revenues	\$	34,315,000	\$	80,206,000	\$	70,084,000	\$	14,984,000	\$	15,433,000	\$	15,896,000	\$	16,372,000	<u>\$</u>	16,862,000	\$	264,152,000
Network & Access Equipment         15,157,000         S         26,252,000         S <td>Evnenditures (Evnenses)</td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td></td>	Evnenditures (Evnenses)																	1	
Network & Access Equipment         \$ 15, 157,000         \$ 24,164,000         \$ 26,520,000         \$\$	Expenditures (Expenses)																	1	100%
Outside Plant         \$\$	Network & Access Equipment	\$	15,157.000	\$	34,104.000	\$	26,526.000	\$		\$		\$		\$		\$		\$	
Customer Premise Equipment         \$         5         1         5         1         5         1         5         1         2         5         1         2         5         1         5         5         1         5         5         1         5         5         1         5         5         1         5         7         5         5         5         7         5         5         5         7         5         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7         7         5         7         5         7         7         5         7         7         5         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7         7 </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>\$</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>\$</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>				\$				<u> </u>						\$	-				
Billing and Operation Support Systems         \$	Buildings and Land	\$	1,878,000	\$	4,226,000	\$	3,287,000	\$		\$		\$		\$	_	\$		\$	9,391,000
Operating Equipment         \$         102,000         \$         178,000         \$ <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>5,610,000</td><td>\$</td><td>12,623,000</td><td>\$</td><td>9,818,000</td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td><u> </u></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>28,051,000</td></t<>			5,610,000	\$	12,623,000	\$	9,818,000	\$		\$			-	\$	-	<u> </u>	-		28,051,000
Engineering/Professional Services         \$         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7         5         7			-	\$	-	<u> </u>	-	\$		- <u>-</u>				<u> </u>		<u> </u>			-
Testing       \$       180,000       \$       405,000       \$       5       \$								<u> </u>						\$		<u> </u>			
Site Preparation       \$       2,463,000       \$       5,541,000       \$														<del>)</del> €				_	
Other         \$ <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td>- <u>-</u></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>9 6</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>_</td> <td></td>								<u> </u>		- <u>-</u>				9 6				_	
Backhaul       \$       - 3       240,000       \$       1.201,000       \$       1.274,000       \$       1.312,000			- 2,400,000					\$		- <u>-</u>				\$					- 12,314,000
Utilities       \$		\$		\$	240,000	\$	804,000	\$	1,201,000	\$	1,237,000	\$	1,274,000	\$	1,312,000		1,351,000	\$	7,419,000
Leasing       \$       -       \$       296,000       \$       1,478,000       \$       1,522,000       \$       1,663,000       \$       9,131,000         Sales/Marketing       \$       -	Network Maintenance/Monitoring	\$	-	\$	721,000	\$	2,413,000	\$	3,605,000	\$	3,713,000	\$	3,824,000	\$	3,939,000	\$	4,057,000	\$	22,272,000
Sales/Marketing       \$			-					\$		\$				\$					
Customer Care       \$       40,000       \$       134,000       \$       206,000       \$       212,000       \$       218,000       \$       225,000       \$       1,235,00				<u> </u>	296,000		989,000	\$	1,478,000	\$	1,522,000	\$	1,568,000	\$	1,615,000		1,663,000	\$	9,131,000
Billing       \$ </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>×</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>\$</td> <td></td> <td>\$</td> <td></td> <td>\$</td> <td></td> <td>\$</td> <td>-</td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td>\$</td> <td>-</td>				×	-			\$		\$		\$		\$	-	<u> </u>		\$	-
Professional Services/Engineering       \$					40,000		134,000	<u>→</u> €	200,000	<u>♦</u>	206,000	<u>→</u>	212,000	9 6	218,000		225,000	<del>ک</del>	1,235,000
Field Technicians       \$					- 800 000		2 678 000	\$	4 000 000	\$	4 120 000	\$	4 244 000	\$	4 371 000		4 502 000	\$	24 715 000
S       S								\$						\$					
Total       \$ 34,315,000       \$ 70,084,000       \$ 14,984,000       \$ 15,433,000       \$ 16,372,000       \$ 16,862,000       \$ 264,152,000         EBITDA       \$0				\$	-		-	\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$	-	-÷	-	\$	-
EBITDA         \$0 <th< td=""><td>Other Operating Expense</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td></th<>	Other Operating Expense	\$	-	\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$	-	\$		\$	
EBITDA         \$0 <th< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td> </td><td></td></th<>																			
Depreciation       \$       -       \$ <t< td=""><td> Total</td><td>\$</td><td>34,315,000</td><td>\$</td><td>80,206,000</td><td>\$</td><td>70,084,000</td><td>\$</td><td>14,984,000</td><td>\$</td><td>15,433,000</td><td>\$</td><td>15,896,000</td><td>\$</td><td>16,372,000</td><td><u>\$</u></td><td>16,862,000</td><td>\$</td><td>264,152,000</td></t<>	Total	\$	34,315,000	\$	80,206,000	\$	70,084,000	\$	14,984,000	\$	15,433,000	\$	15,896,000	\$	16,372,000	<u>\$</u>	16,862,000	\$	264,152,000
Depreciation       \$       -       \$ <t< td=""><td>EDITOA</td><td>1</td><td>¢0</td><td></td><td>¢O</td><td></td><td>¢∩</td><td></td><td>¢∩</td><td></td><td>¢∩</td><td></td><td>¢O</td><td></td><td>¢∩</td><td></td><td>¢O</td><td></td><td>¢∩</td></t<>	EDITOA	1	¢0		¢O		¢∩		¢∩		¢∩		¢O		¢∩		¢O		¢∩
Amortization       \$       -       \$ <t< td=""><td>EBITDA</td><td></td><td>φU</td><td></td><td><b>4</b>0</td><td></td><td><b>\$</b>0</td><td></td><td><del>۵</del>۵</td><td></td><td><b>\$</b>0</td><td></td><td><b>\$</b>0</td><td></td><td><b>\$</b>0</td><td></td><td><b>\$</b>U</td><td>⊢</td><td><b>\$</b>0</td></t<>	EBITDA		φU		<b>4</b> 0		<b>\$</b> 0		<del>۵</del> ۵		<b>\$</b> 0		<b>\$</b> 0		<b>\$</b> 0		<b>\$</b> U	⊢	<b>\$</b> 0
Amortization       \$       -       \$ <t< td=""><td>Depreciation</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td></t<>	Depreciation	\$	-	\$	-	\$		\$	-	\$		\$		\$	-	\$		\$	
Interest Expense       \$       -       \$       >       >				\$	-		-	<u> </u>	-				-	\$	-		-		-
Interest Expense       \$       -       \$       >       >																			
Income Before Taxes       \$0	Earnings Before Interest and Taxes		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0	Ē	\$0
Income Before Taxes       \$0								L								<u> </u>			
Property Tax         \$         -         \$         >         > <t< td=""><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td><u></u></td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td>\$</td><td></td></t<>		\$		\$		\$		<u></u>	-	\$		\$		\$	-	<u> </u>		\$	
Property Tax         \$         -         \$         >         > <t< td=""><td>Income Refore Taxes</td><td></td><td>02</td><td></td><td><b>\$</b>0</td><td></td><td>\$0</td><td></td><td>\$0</td><td>-</td><td>\$0</td><td>-</td><td>\$0</td><td></td><td>\$0</td><td>-</td><td>\$0</td><td><math>\vdash</math></td><td>02</td></t<>	Income Refore Taxes		02		<b>\$</b> 0		\$0		\$0	-	\$0	-	\$0		\$0	-	\$0	$\vdash$	02
Income Taxes         \$         -         \$ <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>ΨU</td><td></td><td>40 4</td><td></td><td>ΨU</td><td></td><td>ΨŪ</td><td></td><td>ψU</td><td></td><td>ΨŪ</td><td></td><td>ψU</td><td><u> </u></td><td>ΨŪ</td><td><math>\vdash</math></td><td>ΨŪ</td></t<>			ΨU		40 4		ΨU		ΨŪ		ψU		ΨŪ		ψU	<u> </u>	ΨŪ	$\vdash$	ΨŪ
Income Taxes         \$         -         \$ <t< td=""><td>Property Tax</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td><td>\$</td><td>-</td></t<>	Property Tax	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Excess (Net Income)         \$0 <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td>			-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-		-
Excess (Net Income) \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0																			
	Excess (Net Income)		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0

# **Balance Sheet**

	Forecast Period											
<u>Assets</u>	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8				
Current Assets												
Cash	\$-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$-				
Marketable Securities	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -				
Accounts Receivable	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-				
Notes Receivable	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-				
Inventory	\$-	\$-	\$ -	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-				
Prepayments	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-				
Other Current Assets	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-				
Total Current Assets	\$ -	\$-	\$-	\$ -	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-				
Non-Current Assets												
Long-Term Investments	\$-	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$-	\$-	\$ -	\$-				
Amortizable Asset (Net of Amortization)	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -				
·							<u> </u>					
Capital Assets	\$ 40,309,000	\$ 131,004,250	ويستعد والشريب والمتشري والمتعاد المتعاد فالمتعاد	\$ 201,545,000	ويستجد والشروب والشروب والمستجد فالمط	ويحمد مشروع ومعرفة ومعروب والمتراجع		\$ 201,545,000				
Less: Accumulated Depreciation	\$-	\$ 4,071,400	\$ 17,303,450	\$ 37,660,450	\$ 58,017,450	\$ 78,374,450	\$ 98,731,450	\$ 122,368,150				
Net Plant			\$ 184,241,550	\$ 163,884,550	\$ 143,527,550	\$ 123,170,550	\$ 102,813,550	\$ 79,176,850				
Other	- \$		<u>\$</u>	<u> </u>	<u>\$</u>		<u> </u>					
Total Non-Current Assets	\$ 40,309,000	\$ 126,932,850	\$ 184,241,550	\$ 163,884,550	\$ 143,527,550	\$ 123,170,550	\$ 102,813,550	\$ 79,176,850				
Total Assets	\$ 40,309,000	\$ 126,932,850	¢ 194 241 550	¢ 162 004 550	¢ 142 527 550	\$ 123 170 550	¢ 102 912 550	¢ 70.476.950				
	$\Psi = -0,000,000$	$\Psi$ 120,002,000	φ 104,241,550	\$ 103,004,000	φ 145,527,550	φ 123,170,330	φ TUZ,013,000					
	φ 40,000,000		•		•							
Liabilities and Fund Balances	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	• 143,527,550 Year 5	Year 6	¥ear 7	¥ear 8				
			•		•							
Liabilities and Fund Balances			•		•							
<u>Liabilities and Fund Balances</u> Liabilities <i>Current Liabilities</i>			•	Year 4	Year 5							
<u>Liabilities and Fund Balances</u> Liabilities <u>Current Liabilities</u> Accounts Payable	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3		Year 5 \$	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8				
<u>Liabilities and Fund Balances</u> Liabilities <i>Current Liabilities</i>	Year 1 \$	Year 2 \$	Year 3 \$	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6 \$	Year 7 \$	Year 8 \$-				
<u>Liabilities and Fund Balances</u> Liabilities <u>Current Liabilities</u> Accounts Payable Notes Payable	Year 1 \$ \$ \$	Year 2 \$	Year 3 \$	Year 4 \$	Year 5 \$	Year 6 \$	Year 7 \$	Year 8 \$\$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities <i>Current Liabilities</i> Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities	Year 1 \$ \$ \$	Year 2 \$\$	Year 3 \$	Year 4 \$ \$ \$	Year 5 \$ \$ \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 7 \$ \$ \$	Year 8 \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities Long-Term Liabilities	Year 1 \$	Year 2 \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 3 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 4 \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 5 \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 7 \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 8 \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities Long-Term Liabilities Long Term Notes Payable	Year 1 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 2 \$	Year 3 \$ - \$ -	Year 4 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 5 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 7 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 8 \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities Long Term Liabilities Other Long Term Liabilities	Year 1 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 2 \$ - \$ -	Year 3 \$ - \$ -	Year 4 \$	Year 5 \$	Year 6 <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> -	Year 7 \$	Year 8 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities Long-Term Liabilities Long Term Notes Payable	Year 1 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 2 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 3 \$ - \$ -	Year 4 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 5 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 7 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	Year 8 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities Long Term Liabilities Other Long Term Liabilities	Year 1 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 2 \$ - \$ -	Year 3 \$ - \$ -	Year 4 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 5 \$	Year 6 <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> -	Year 7 \$	Year 8 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities Long-Term Liabilities Long Term Notes Payable Other Long Term Liabilities Total Long-Term Liabilities Total Long-Term Liabilities	Year 1 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 2 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 3 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 4 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 5 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 7 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 8 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Cother Current Liabilities Long-Term Liabilities Long Term Notes Payable Other Long Term Liabilities Total Long-Term Liabilities	Year 1  S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S S	Year 2 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 3 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 4 \$ \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ -	Year 5 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 7 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 8 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances         Liabilities         Current Liabilities         Accounts Payable         Notes Payable         Other Current Liabilities         Total Current Liabilities         Long-Term Liabilities         Other Long Term Liabilities         Total Long-Term Liabilities         Total Long-Term Liabilities         Total Liabilities         Fund Balances	Year 1  S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S	Year 2 \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 3 \$ - \$ - \$ \$ \$	Year 4 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 5 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 7 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 8 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities Long-Term Liabilities Long Term Notes Payable Other Long Term Liabilities Total Long-Term Liabilities Total Long-Term Liabilities	Year 1  S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S S	Year 2 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 3 \$ - \$ - \$ \$ \$	Year 4 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 5 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 7 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 8 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$				
Liabilities and Fund Balances         Liabilities         Current Liabilities         Accounts Payable         Notes Payable         Other Current Liabilities         Other Current Liabilities         Long-Term Liabilities         Long Term Notes Payable         Other Long Term Liabilities         Total Long-Term Liabilities         Total Long-Term Liabilities         Total Liabilities         Fund Balances         Assets Unavailable for Appropriation	Year 1	Year 2 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 3 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 4  \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 5 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 7 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 8				
Liabilities and Fund Balances Liabilities Current Liabilities Accounts Payable Notes Payable Other Current Liabilities Total Current Liabilities Long-Term Liabilities Long Term Notes Payable Other Long Term Liabilities Total Long-Term Liabilities Fund Balances	Year 1	Year 2 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 3 \$ - \$ - \$ \$ \$	Year 4 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 5 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 6 \$ - \$ - \$ \$	Year 7 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$	Year 8 \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$ - \$				

# **Statement of Cash Flows**

		Forecast Period												
	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	Year 6	Year 7	Year 8						
Beginning Cash	\$-	\$	\$-	\$ -	\$ -	\$-	\$-	\$-						
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:														
Net Income	-	2,997,000	10,031,000	14,984,000	15,433,000	15,896,000	16,372,000	16,862,000						
Cash Paid for Salaries &Operating Expenses		(2,997,000)	(10,031,000)		(15,433,000)	(15,896,000)	(16,372,000)	(16,862,000)						
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net														
Cash Provided by Operating Activities														
Add: Depreciation			-	-	-		-							
Add: Amortization	_	-	-	-	-	-	-	-						
Changes in Current Assets and Liabilities:														
Marketable Securities	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-						
Accounts Receivable	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-						
Inventory	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-						
Prepayments	-	-	-		-	-	-	-						
Other Current Assets	-	-			-									
Accounts Payable					-									
Other Current Liabilities														
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operations	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0						
, <i>i</i> i														
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:														
Capital Expenditures	-	-	-	-	-		-	-						
Amortizable Asset (Net of Amortization)	-	-	-		-	-	-	-						
Long-Term Investments					-									
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0						
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:														
Notes Receivable			<u>_</u>					<u>-</u>						
Notes Payable Principal Payments			<u>_</u>				<u>-</u>	<u>_</u>						
New Borrowing							<u>-</u>							
Additional Paid-in Capital								<u>_</u>						
Additional Paid-In Capital Additions to Patronage Capital Credits														
Payment of Dividends														
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0						
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0						
Ending Cash														

## **NPV/IRR** Table

	Net Present Value	Internal Rate of Return
Without BTOP Funding		
With BTOP Funding		

The LA-SafetyNet system has not been designed to generate a profit; it is expected that revenues from users will equal the required operational expenses, therefore the net present value of the project and the IRR are both 0.

Revenue Assumptions	
Factor	Specific Metric Used in Analysis
Customers Passed	
Anchor Institutions - Segment A	
Anchor Institutions - Segment B	
Businesses	
Households	
Last Mile Providers	
Other	
Take Rate (should likely vary across 8-Y	ear Forecast)
Anchor Institutions - Segment A	
Anchor Institutions - Segment B	
Businesses	
Households	
Last Mile Providers	
Direct Customer Connections	
Customer Segment A	
Customer Segment B	
Other	
Average Revenue per User (may vary ac	ross 8-year forecast)
Anchor Institutions - Segment A	
Anchor Institutions - Segment B	
Businesses	
Households	
Last Mile Providers	
Other	

Expense Assumptions	
Factor	Specific Metric Used in Analysis
Network Expenses	

Utilities	\$10,000 per site * 300 sites
Leasing	\$1,600 per site * 77 sites
Depreciation	n/a
Other	
Sales & Marketing	
Advertising	none
Commissions	none
Salaries	none
Other	none
Customer Care & Billing	
Systems	none
Personnel	none
Other	none
General & Administrative	
Professional Services	\$6M
Field Technicians	\$1.5M
Insurance	
Non-Network Utilities	
Travel	
Supplies	
Miscellaneous	
Interest Expenses	
Debt Instrument A	
Debt Instrument B	
Taxes	
Federal Tax Rate	
Other Tax Rates	

Rationale (Cite Basis)	

Rationale (Cite Basis)	

1,478,400

# **Depreciation Schedule**

							Depreciation	n								
				Year 1		Year 2	Year 3		Year 4	Yea	ar 5	Year 6	Year	7	Year 8	Total
Capital Assets	Acquisition Cost	Asset Life	Annual Depreciation	20%		45%	35%									
				Ĩ	<u> </u>			<u>,</u>								
	┼┛╌╌┺╍╍╍┺╌		╷┛╴╴╴┛	₽												
	┼┛╌╌╌┚			<u> </u>	<b>.</b>											
				<b></b>												
	- <b>.</b>		. <u> </u>	<u> </u>	Í			Ĵ.		Í			<u> </u>			ÍĨ
		<b>B</b>		<b></b>												
		<b>_</b>						<u></u>		<u> </u>			Í			
	┼┛╌╶╼╼╶┛	<b>B</b>														
	- <b></b>			<b></b>	<b>_</b>											
		<b>_</b>			<u> </u>			Î		Í			í			
	┼╏────	<b>I</b>			<b></b>					l						
	┿╹╸╌╌╹ ┿╹┛╌╌╌╴ <b>┙╴╴╸╸</b>	<b>B</b>	╶╷┛╴╴╴╴╴┛							/						
	+	<b>.</b>			<b>_</b>			<b>-</b>								·
	╆╒┛╌╌╌╌╸ <mark>┛╴╴╸╸</mark> ┼╹┛╴╴┚ <sup>┓┓</sup>	<b></b>	·₽······		<b>.</b>				<b>-</b>							
Annual Tota	\$ 201,545,000		\$ 20,357,000	\$-	\$	4,071,400	\$ 13,232,050	\$	20,357,000	\$ 20,	357,000 \$	20,357,000	\$ 20,35	7,000 \$	23,636,700	\$ 122,368,150
Accumulated Tota					\$	4,071,400	\$ 17,303,450	\$	37,660,450	\$ 58,	017,450 \$	78,374,450	\$ 98,73 <sup>,</sup>	1,450 \$	<b>122,368,150</b>	

Modified accrual accounting

## **BTOP Comprehensive Community Infrastructure Project Plan and Build-out Timeline**

Please complete the Project Plan and Build-out Timeline templates below. Note that these templates may be modified by applicants in order to provide the most effective presentation of the data for their specific project. Applicants should ensure, however, that they provide at least as much detail as the provided templates require.

For system stability reasons, it is recommended that you provide these documents in PDF format when submitting a copy of your application on an appropriate electronic medium, such as a DVD, CD-ROM, or flash drive. There is no need to provide this instruction page.

#### **PROJECT PLAN**

- Use the following table to list the major network build-out phases and milestones that can demonstrate that your entire project will be substantially complete by the end of Year 2 and fully complete by the end of Year 3. This is to be done at the aggregate level (combining all proposed funded service areas.)
- Indicated how the milestones listed below will demonstrate these completion objectives. The applicant should consider such project areas as: a) network design; b) securing all relevant licenses and agreements; c) site preparation; d) inside plant deployment; e) outside plan deployment; f) deployment of business & operational support systems; g) network testing; f) network operational. The applicant may provide any other milestones that it believes showcase progress.
- Project inception (Year 0) starts at the date when the applicant receives notice that the project has been approved for funding.
- In the table, provide any information (e.g., facts, analysis) to: a) demonstrate the reasonableness of these milestones; b) substantiate the ability to reach the milestones by the quarters indicated.

Time Period	Quarter	Milestones	Support for Reasonableness/Data Points
Year 0	-	<ul> <li>Approval of Executive Management to proceed.</li> <li>Procure Technical Consultant Staff and Support (Project Team)</li> <li>Develop and get approval for the schedule and budget</li> <li>Kick Off Meeting</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The LA-RICS Executives shall provide their approval for the project. Key internal stakeholders shall be identified.</li> <li>Additional technical support ("Project Team") shall be procured to lead the design and program management of the Broadband Initiative. The Project Team will be responsible for all program related activities.</li> <li>Preliminary budgets and timelines shall be developed, this will be followed by the development of a detailed work breakdown schedule, project plan and spend plan.</li> </ul>
Year 1	Qtr. 1	<ul> <li>Finalize and Approve the Comprehensive Project Plan</li> <li>Develop and Release Procurement for LTE Vendor</li> <li>Develop and Release Expedited Procurements for: Architecture &amp; Engineering (A&amp;E), Construction, Backhaul Equipment/Installation, Permitting Support, Electricians, Generators, Towers and Monopoles.</li> <li>Begin Technical Design for the LTE Broadband Network.</li> <li>Technical Evaluation for LTE Vendor Procurement Procurements and Contracting Completed: A&amp;E, Construction, Backhaul, Permitting, Electricians, Generators, Towers/Monopoles</li> <li>Final LTE Broadband Technical Design Completed</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The Technical Project Team ("Project Team") will develop and release the RFPs for the procurement of the equipment, hardware and vendors required for the deployment of the broadband network; this will include the LTE equipment and devices vendor, the A&amp;E support for building and tower drawings/designs, construction contractors, tower and monopole contractors, fiber and backhaul contractors, permitting support, electricians, and generators. LA-RICS has open contracts or competed schedule quotes for nearly all services listed here; with the exception of the LTE vendor and devices. Hence, the procurement for these items can be expedited through existing purchasing</li> </ul>

The Los Angeles Public Safety Broadband Network: LA-SafetyNet

	<ul> <li>Backhaul Design - Ongoing</li> <li>Survey all sites and tally all work requirements to include: site modifications, upgrading of existing backhaul, core network placement, electrical, etc</li> <li>Site Acquisition and/or Leasing to Begin</li> <li>Core Network Design (and redundancy) Begins</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>vehicles.</li> <li>The LA-RICS shall provide the technical evaluators and contracting officers necessary to evaluate the IFB/RFP responses from the integrators, hardware and equipment vendors as required by the program.</li> <li>Procurement contracts are expected to be in place for A&amp;E, Construction, Backhaul, Permitting, Electricians, Generators, Towers and Monopoles by the end of the Quarter.</li> <li>The Project Team shall create a detailed LTE Broadband Design.</li> <li>LTE Broadband Design is to be approved by LA-RICS executives and stakeholders. The design results will include the expected level of service geo-referenced for review.</li> <li>The backhaul design analysis continues with a review of the County-owned connectivity, program, future requirements and the cost-effective solutions.</li> <li>All new and existing transceiver site locations are to be identified. Each proposed site location is to be surveyed in a detailed manner; work order requirements per site are to be developed and submitted for budgeting and scheduling.</li> <li>Preliminary site drawings are to be completed.</li> <li>Leasing and Acquisition for the transceiver site locations is to begin.</li> <li>Core Network Design effort begins ("inside plant"). The design will include the creation of all Work Orders required to facilitate the deployment of the Core Network at the LA-RICS data center(s).</li> </ul>
Qtr. 2	<ul> <li>Backhaul Design Finalized</li> <li>Site Acquisition and/or Leasing - Ongoing</li> <li>Core Network Design Completed</li> <li>Permitting for LTE Core Network locations</li> <li>Permitting for Transceiver Sites Begins</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The RFP Responses for the LTE Vendor are to be evaluated. The selection process is expected to take six (6) weeks minimum.</li> <li>The final backhaul design, budget and equipment are approved. The schedule will be revised where necessary.</li> <li>Core Network Design is to be completed. The system's reliability is to be calculated based on the level of redundancy and the equipment specifications. The necessary permits are to be submitted for the core network locations.</li> <li>The permitting of the transceiver site locations is to begin. Building permits will cover all aspects of the</li> </ul>

			work, to include at a minimum; RF safety, electrical and planning permits, etc.
	Qtr. 3	<ul> <li>Site Acquisition and Leasing is Completed</li> <li>Core Network Construction Begins</li> <li>Permitting for LTE Transceiver Sites - Ongoing</li> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Construction Begins</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>All Site Acquisition and Leasing is to be completed by the end of this Quarter.</li> <li>The construction of the space for the core network location(s) is to begin. The core network construction may include the augmentation of electrical circuits and installation of additional generators.</li> <li>Construction is expected to begin for the transceiver sites ("outside plant") whose permits were "Fast-Tracked" (existing public safety locations and sites requiring minor modifications)</li> </ul>
	Qtr. 4	<ul> <li>Core Network Construction Completed</li> <li>Permitting for all LTE Transceiver Sites Completed</li> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Construction - Ongoing</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The construction on the core network locations is completed and the data center is readied for LTE core network hardware installation.</li> <li>The transceiver site permitting is expected to be completed for all locations at the end of this Quarter. This assumes that all sites have been acquired or properly leased.</li> </ul>
Year 2	Qtr. 1	<ul> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Construction - Ongoing</li> <li>Deployment of Backhaul begins</li> <li>LTE Core Network Equipment Installation Begins</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The deployment of the backhaul solutions are to begin. Backhaul connectivity is to include Microwave Point-to- Point, new County-owned fiber and leased circuits.</li> <li>The installation of the LTE Equipment at the Core Network data centers is scheduled to begin.</li> </ul>
	Qtr. 2	<ul> <li>LTE Core Network Equipment Completed &amp; Tested</li> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Construction Completed</li> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Equipment Installation Begins</li> <li>Backhaul Deployment Continues</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The LTE Core Network is installed, tested and readied for the integration of transceiver sites.</li> <li>All transceiver sites are ready for LTE Equipment installation.</li> <li>The installation of the LTE equipment at "Fast-Tracked" transceiver sites begins</li> </ul>
	Qtr. 3	<ul> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Equipment Installation - Ongoing</li> <li>Delivery of BETA LTE Devices.</li> <li>Backhaul Deployment Completed and Tested</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The LTE Vendor supplies the Beta LTE end-user devices for demonstrations and training and benchmarking devices for network acceptance.</li> <li>Backhaul circuits are tested and readied for LTE transceiver integration.</li> </ul>
	Qtr. 4	<ul> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Equipment Installation - Completed</li> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Integration - Begins</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The installation of the LTE transceiver equipment at all sites is completed.</li> <li>The Project Team begins to integrate the LTE transceiver sites with the core network on a cluster-by-cluster basis. The integration effort will include extensive drive testing to ensure system coverage and reliability levels are met.</li> </ul>

Year 3	Qtr. 1	<ul> <li>LTE Optimization Begins</li> <li>Delivery of Final LTE Devices</li> <li>LTE Transceiver Site Integration - Completed</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>The Network Acceptance Procedure is finalized with the LTE Equipment Vendor</li> <li>Network optimization begins.</li> <li>All LTE Transceiver sites are expected to be integrated with the core network at this time.</li> <li>The first delivery of LTE end-user devices arrives.</li> </ul>
	Qtr. 2	LTE Optimization - Completed	<ul> <li>The LTE Optimization effort is completed by the end of this Quarter.</li> </ul>
	Qtr. 3	<ul> <li>Training</li> <li>Vehicle Installations</li> <li>Network Acceptance Begins</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>End-User Training begins.</li> <li>Core network training begins. Operations and Maintenance contract is put into place.</li> </ul>
	Qtr. 4	<ul><li>Network Acceptance</li><li>Project End.</li></ul>	<ul><li>Network Acceptance Complete.</li><li>Network is turned over to LA-RICS operations staff.</li></ul>

#### **BUILD-OUT TIMELINE**

Complete the following schedule for *each* Last Mile or Middle Mile Service Area to note the degree of build-out, based on: a) infrastructure funds awarded; b) entities passed (households, businesses, and community anchor institutions.). <u>In addition, please</u> complete a schedule that aggregates the build-out timeline across all of the Proposed Funded Service Area.

Service													
Area	LA-Safety	LA-SafetyNet						Funds Awarded: \$		245,106	245,106,832		
		YEAR 1 YEAR 2					YEAR 3						
	YEAR 0	Qtr. 1	Qtr. 2	Qtr. 3	Qtr. 4	Qtr. 1	Qtr. 2	Qtr. 3	Qtr. 4	Qtr. 1	Qtr. 2	Qtr. 3	Qtr. 4
Infrastructure Funds													
Infrastructure Funds Advanced (estimate)	\$42,560,222	\$10,539,594	\$10.055.240	¢17 157 470	\$19,608,547	¢22 285 140	\$27,697,072	¢20,412,820	¢26.061.752	\$19,608,547	\$8,333,632	\$6,686,679	\$0
Percentage of	\$43,560,222	\$10,539,594	\$12,255,342	\$17,157,478	\$19,008,547	\$23,285,149	\$27,097,072	\$29,412,820	\$26,961,752	\$19,008,547	\$8,333,032	\$0,080,079	\$U
Total Funds	17.8%	4.3%	5.0%	7.0%	8.0%	9.5%	11.3%	12.0%	11.0%	8.0%	3.4%	2.7%	
Entities Passed & %													
Households	3,385,944							1,862,269	2,539,458	3,216,647	3,385,944		
Percentage of Total Households								55.00%	75.00%	95%	100%		
Business	901,948							496,071	676,461	856,851	901,948		
Percentage of Total Businesses								55.00%	75.00%	95%	100%		
Community Anchor Institutions													
Percentage of Total Institutions													

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES Approved to							
Complete this form	n to disclose lobbying	g activities pursuant	0348-0046				
	(See reverse for pul	olic burden disclosu	re.)				
1. Type of Federal Action:	al Action:	3. Report Type:					
B a. contract	ffer/application	A a. initial filing					
b. grant	b. initia	award	b. material change				
c. cooperative agreement	c. post-	award	vard For Material Change Only:				
d. Ioan		yearquarter					
e. Ioan guarantee			date of la	st report			
f. Ioan insurance							
4. Name and Address of Reportin			-	ubawardee, Enter Name			
Prime Subawardee		and Address of	Prime:				
Tier	, if known :						
Los Angeles Regional Interop	erable						
Communications System Author							
2525 Corporate Place, Suite	200						
Monterey Park, CA 91754							
Congressional District, if knowl	<i>1</i> : <sup>4</sup> C	Congressional District, if known:					
6. Federal Department/Agency:		7. Federal Program Name/Description:					
Department of Commerce, NTIA		Recovery Act - Broadband Technology Opportunities Program					
		CFDA Number, if applicable: 11.557					
8. Federal Action Number, if know	<i>'n</i> :	9. Award Amount	, if known :				
		\$					
10. a. Name and Address of Lobb	ying Registrant	b. Individuals Per	forming Services	(including address if			
(if individual, last name, first i	name, MI):	different from No. 10a)					
Not applicable		(last name, first name, MI):					
		Not applicable					
			$\square$				
11. Information requested through this form is authoriz. 1352 This disclosure of lobbying activities is a m	Signature:	J.					
upon which reliance was placed by the lier above wh	Print Name: Scott	Poster	Metro Bryania Makana Amerika				
or enferred into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 135 information will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to required disclosure shall be subject to a civil ponalty of not less than \$10.		Title: Executive Dir					
not more than \$100,900 for each such failure.		Telephone No.: 32	23-881-8291	Date: 08/09/10			
Federal Use Only:	en ander en en de la ser de la source en construction de la service de la service de la service de la service d	anne an the and the same of the sam	an an an an ann an ann an ann an ann an	Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)			
			and a second provide the second se	the second secon			

### **U.S. Department of Commerce Broadband Technology Opportunities Program** Authentication and Certifications

- 1. I certify that I am the duly Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) of the applicant organization, and that I have been authorized to submit the attached application on its behalf.
- 2. I certify that I have examined this application, that all of the information and responses in this application, including certifications, and forms submitted, all of which are part of this grant application, are material representations of fact and true and correct to the best of my knowledge, that the entity(ies) that is requesting grant funding pursuant to this application and any subgrantees and subcontractors will comply with the terms, conditions, purposes, and federal requirements of the grant program; that no kickbacks were paid to anyone; and that a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims on this application are grounds for denial or termination of a grant award, and/or possible punishment by a fine or imprisonment as provided in 18 U.S.C. §1001 and civil violations of the False Claims Act.
- 3. I certify that the entity(ies) I represent has and will comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, orders and programmatic rules and requirements relating to the project. I acknowledge that failure to do so may result in rejection or deobligation of the grant or loan award. I acknowledge that failure to comply with all federal and program rules could result in civil or criminal prosecution by the appropriate law enforcement authorities.
- 4. I certify that the entity(ies) I represent has and will comply with all applicable administrative and federal statutory, regulatory, and policy requirements set forth in the Department of Commerce Pre-Award Notification Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements ("DOC Pre-Award Notification"), published in the Federal Register on February 11, 2008 (73 FR 7696), as amended: DOC Financial Assistance Standard Terms and Conditions (Mar. 8, 2009); the Department of Commerce American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Award Terms (Apr. 9, 2009); and any Special Award Terms and Conditions that are included by the Grants Officer in the award.
- 5. I certify that any funds awarded to the entity(ies) I represent as a result of this application will not result in any unjust enrichment of such entity(ies) or duplicate any funds such entity(ies) receives under federal universal service support programs administered by the Universal Service Administrative Corporation (USAC).
- 6. I certify that the entity(ies) I represent has secured access to pay the 20% of total project cost or has petitioned the Assistant Secretary of NTIA for a waiver of the matching requirement.

Title

28/10

Authorized Organization Representative Signature Print Name NTERIM

Scott Poster LA-RICS Project Team

Los Angeles Regional Interoperable Communications System www.la-rics.org

2525 Corporate Place Suite 200 Monterey Park, CA 91754

mobile: (213) 369-5745

office: (323) 881-8291 sposter@la-rics.org

Date

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES Approved to							
Complete this form	n to disclose lobbying	g activities pursuant	0348-0046				
	(See reverse for pul	olic burden disclosu	re.)				
1. Type of Federal Action:	al Action:	3. Report Type:					
B a. contract	ffer/application	A a. initial filing					
b. grant	b. initia	award	b. material change				
c. cooperative agreement	c. post-	award	vard For Material Change Only:				
d. Ioan		yearquarter					
e. Ioan guarantee			date of la	st report			
f. Ioan insurance							
4. Name and Address of Reportin			-	ubawardee, Enter Name			
Prime Subawardee		and Address of	Prime:				
Tier	, if known :						
Los Angeles Regional Interop	erable						
Communications System Author							
2525 Corporate Place, Suite	200						
Monterey Park, CA 91754							
Congressional District, if knowl	<i>1</i> : <sup>4</sup> C	Congressional District, if known:					
6. Federal Department/Agency:		7. Federal Program Name/Description:					
Department of Commerce, NTIA		Recovery Act - Broadband Technology Opportunities Program					
		CFDA Number, if applicable: 11.557					
8. Federal Action Number, if know	<i>'n</i> :	9. Award Amount	, if known :				
		\$					
10. a. Name and Address of Lobb	ying Registrant	b. Individuals Per	forming Services	(including address if			
(if individual, last name, first i	name, MI):	different from No. 10a)					
Not applicable		(last name, first name, MI):					
		Not applicable					
			$\square$				
11. Information requested through this form is authoriz. 1352 This disclosure of lobbying activities is a m	Signature:	J.					
upon which reliance was placed by the lier above wh	Print Name: Scott	Poster	Metro Bryania Makana Amerika				
or enferred into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 135 information will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to required disclosure shall be subject to a civil ponalty of not less than \$10.		Title: Executive Dir					
not more than \$100,900 for each such failure.		Telephone No.: 32	23-881-8291	Date: 08/09/10			
Federal Use Only:	en ander en en de la ser de la source en construction de la service de la service de la service de la service d	anne an the and the same of the sam	an an an an ann an ann an ann an ann an	Authorized for Local Reproduction Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)			
			and a second provide the second se	the second secon			